















































$0.0306 per share Regular Cash Dividend
Declaration Date: September 28, 2023
Record date: October 13, 2023

Payment date: October 27, 2023

P0.0262 per share Regular Cash Dividend
Declaration Date: September 30, 2022
Record date: October 14, 2022

Payment date: October 27, 2022

P0.0161 per share Regular Cash Dividend
Declaration Date: September 30, 2021
Record date: October 15, 2021

Payment date: October 28, 2021

P0.0156 per share Regular Cash Dividend
Declaration Date: September 30, 2020
Record date: October 15, 2020

Payment date: October 30, 2020

P0.0571 per share Regular Cash Dividend
Declaration Date: September 30, 2019
Record date: October 15, 2019

Payment date: October 30, 2019

P0.0489 per share Regular Cash Dividend
Declaration Date: September 26, 2018
Record date: October 11, 2018

Payment date: October 25, 2018

P0.0368 per share Regular Cash Dividend
Declaration Date: September 27, 2017
Record date: October 12, 2017

Payment date: October 26, 2017

Stockholders Name No. of Common Shares (of C:;r;eul:askiaearcs)‘

10. | Cua, Ang & Chua Sccurities Inc. 66,000 0.00%
11. | Dees Securities Corp. 60,715 0.00%
12. | Paic Securities Corporation 60,400 0.00%
13. | Tansengco & Co., Inc. 56,000 0.00%
14. | Ansaldo, Godinez & Co. Inc. 54,286 0.00%
15. | Filinvest Sec. Co. Inc. 50,000 0.00%
16. | Benito Penalosa 50,000 0.00%
17. | Mario Osmena Jr. 50,000 0.00%
18. | Gilbert Tiu 40,000 0.00%
19. | Oh Siong Yu 39,942 0.00%
20. | Babes Ojales 39,000 0.00%
Total 8,424,475,300 99.98%
Others 1,500,756 0.02%

Dividends



P£0.0215 per share Regular Cash Dividend
Declaration Date: September 26, 2016
Record date: October 11, 2016

Payment date: October 26, 2016

Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities

There have been no sales of unregistered securities in the past three years.

Stock Options

None

Item 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF YEAR END 2023 VS YEAR END 2022

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues

Operating revenue

Operating revenue increased from 212,143 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to £13,141 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023. The 8.2% increase in the account was primarily attributable to the
following:

Rental income increased from £11,711 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to £12,673
million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The 8.2% increase was due to the increase in
occupancy and increase in the rental rate for the year.

Parking fee revenue increased from P99 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to 2109
million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The 10.1% increase was due to higher number of
vehicles using the mall parking space.

Other operating income increased from P333 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
£358 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The 7.6% increase was due to the increase in
administrative fees and mall maintenance and security fees for the year.

Costs and Expenses

Operating Expenses

Cost and expenses decreased from P12,864 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to 23,693 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023. The 71.3% decrease in the account was primarily attributable to the
following:

Decrease in impairment loss on investment in associate amounting from £9,491 in December 31,
2022 to P50 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 due to the change in the discount and
cap rate which resulted to a decline in the investment fair value of VREIT.

Increase in light and power by 53.0% from 265 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
P405 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 due to the increase in the consumption in light
and power as a result of longer mall operating hours.

Increase in taxes, licenses and other fees by 51.8% from $229 million for the year ended December
31, 2022 to P347 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 due to higher taxes paid for the year.
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» Increase in repairs and maintenance by 232.1% from 292 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 to 306 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 due to higher number of repairs and
maintenance incurred for the year.

*  Decrease in professional fees by 68.8% from P91 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
£29 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 as a result of higher professional fees paid in
2023,

* Increase in advertising and promotions by 239.7% from 21 million for the year ended December
31, 2022 to B71 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 due to higher advertising fees paid
for the year.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest income decreased from 11 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to B8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2023, The 25.6% decrease due to lower cash earning interest for the year.

Fair value gain (loss) on investment at fair value through profit or loss increased from a loss of £1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022 to a gain of £0.34 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The
increase resulted from the higher fair value of investment at fair value through FVTPL.

Equity in net earnings of an associate was also recorded for the year ended December 31, 2023 of RB572
million pertaining to the share in the income of VREIT for the year.

Interest expense increased slightly by 1.9% from 2650 million in the year ended December 31, 2022 to R662
million in the year ended December 31, 2023. This is due primarily to the interest pertaining to the lease
liabilities recognized due to the adoption of the PFRS 16.

Provision for Income Tax

Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2023 is £2,673 million an increase of 31.2% from P2,037
million for the year ended December 31, 2022. This is due primarily to the higher taxable income recorded
for the year.

Net Income

As aresult of the foregoing, the Company’s net income increased by 135.3% from £8,367 million in the year
ended December 31, 2022 to £8,535 million in the year ended December 31, 2023.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, except as discussed in Note 27 — Other Matters of the 2023 Financial
Statements on the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, there were no other seasonal aspects that had a material
effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company. Neither were there any trends,
events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on the net sales
or revenues or income from continuing operations.

There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

As of December 31, 2023 vs. December 31, 2022

Total assets as of December 31, 2022 were 91,519 million compared to £99,274 million as of December 31,
2023, or a 8.5% increase. This was due to the following:



Cash and cash equivalents including short term cash investments decreased by 95.3% from £3,523
million as of December 31, 2022 to £165 million as of December 31, 2023 due to net cash flow used
in operating and financing activities for the year.

Receivables, including non-current portion increased by 34.5% from 25,644 million as of
December 31, 2022 to £34,487 million as of December 31, 2023 due to the increase in accrued rent,
receivables from related parties, and advances to contractors.

Property and equipment decreased by 33.0% from P37 million as of December 31, 2022 to P24
million as of December 31, 2023 due to depreciation recognized for the year.

Investment associates slightly increased by 0.6% from 29,836 million as of December 31, 2022 to
£9,899 million as of December 31, 2023 due primarily to the share in net earnings recorded.

Investment properties increased by 3.8% from P44,900 million as of December 31, 2022 to
$£46,626 million as of December 31, 2023 due to the additions for the year.

Other assets including non-current portion slightly decreased by 0.5% from 3,367 million as of
December 31, 2022 to £3,352 million as of December 31, 2023 due primarily to decreases in
refundable deposits and creditable withholding taxes.

Total liabilities as of December 31, 2023 were 254,399 million compared to #54,917 million as of December
31, 2022, or a 0.9% decrease. This was due to the following:

Accounts and other payables increased by 3.4% from £5,147 million as of December 31, 2022 to
P5,321 million as of December 31, 2023 due to the increase in deferred output VAT, current portion
of retention payable and accrued expenses.

Security deposits and advance rent increased by 3.0% from 21,122 million as of December 31, 2022
to B1,155 million as of December 31, 2023 due to the increase in the security deposits and advance
rent for the year.

Payable to parent company decreased by 7.9% from £32,696 million as of December 31, 2022 to
P30,109 million as of December 31, 2023 due to settlements made to parent company during the
year.

Income tax payable decreased by 79.6% from B11 million as of December 31, 2022 to P2 million as
of December 31, 2023 due to the settlements made during the year.

Bank Loans, including non-current portion decreased by 20.9% from 2,174 million as of December
31, 2022 to P1,720 million as of December 31, 2023 due to settlement made during the year.

Pension liabilities increased by 8.9% from P49 million as of December 31, 2022 to £54 million as
of December 31, 2023 due to actuarial adjustments.

Deferred tax liabilities — net posted an increase of 39.7% from £6,365 million as of December 31,
2022 to £8,889 million as of December 31, 2023 due to the increase in temporary differences for the
period that will eventually result to future tax liability.

Other non-current liabilities decreased by 39.3% from #637 million as of December 31, 2022 to
P386 million as of December 31, 2023 due to the decrease in the retention payable.

Total stockholder’s equity increased by 22.6% from £36,602 million as of December 31, 2022 to £44,875
million as of December 31, 2023 to due to the earnings recorded for the year.
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Bank Loans, including non-current portion decreased by 20.9% from £2,174 million as of December 31,
2022 to 21,720 million as of December 31, 2023 due to settlement made during the year.

Pension liabilities increased by 8.9% from P49 million as of December 31, 2022 to 54 million as of
December 31, 2023 due to actuarial adjustments.

Deferred tax liabilities — net posted an increase of 39.7% from 26,365 million as of December 31, 2022
to P8,889 million as of December 31, 2023 due to the increase in temporary differences for the period
that will eventually result to future tax liability.

Other non-current liabilities decreased by 39.3% from 2637 million as of December 31, 2022 to
P386 million as of December 31, 2023 due to the decrease in the retention payable.

Material Changes to the Company’s Statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2023
compared to the year ended December 31, 2022 (increase/decrease of 5% or more)

Rental income increased from 211,711 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to £12,673 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023. The 8.2% increase was due to the increase in occupancy and
increase in the rental rate for the year.

Parking fee revenue increased from 299 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to 109 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023. The 10.1% increase was due to higher number of vehicles using
the mall parking space.

Other operating income increased from P333 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
P358 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The 7.6% increase was due to the increase in
administrative fees and mall maintenance and security fees for the year.

Increase in light and power by 53.0% from #265 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
P405 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 due to the increase in the consumption in light and
power as a result of longer mall operating hours.

Increase in taxes, licenses and other fees by 51.8% from £229 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 to 2347 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 due to higher taxes paid for the year.

Increase in repairs and maintenance by 232.1% from £92 million for the year ended December 31, 2022
to 306 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 due to higher number of repairs and maintenance
incurred for the year.

Decrease in professional fees by 68.8% from 91 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
P29 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 as a result of higher professional fees paid in 2023.

Increase in advertising and promotions by 239.7% from B21 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 to P71 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 due to higher advertising fees paid for the
year,

Interest income decreased from P11 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to P8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2023. The 25.6% decrease due to lower cash eamning interest for the year.

Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2023 is 22,673 million an increase of 31.2% from £2,037
million for the year ended December 31, 2022. This is due primarily to the higher taxable income
recorded for the year.

The Company’s net income increased by 135.3% from P8,367 million in the year ended December 31,
2022 1o P8,535 million in the year ended December 31, 2023.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023, except as discussed in Note 27 — Other Matters of the 2023 Financial
Statements on the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, there were no other seasonal aspects that had a material
effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company. Neither were there any trends,
events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on the net sales
or revenues or income from continuing operations,

There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations.

REVIEW OF YEAR END 2022 VS YEAR END 2021

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues

Operating revenue

Operating revenue increased from £9,226 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to B12,143 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022. The 31.6% increase in the account was primarily attributable to the
following:

e Rental income increased from £8,836 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to 11,711
million for the year ended December 31, 2022. The 32.5% increase was due to the increase in
occupancy and increase in the rental rate for the year.

e Parking fee revenue decreased from £122 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to B99
million for the year ended December 31, 2022. The 18.8% decrease was due to lower number of
vehicles using the mall parking space.

e  Other operating income increased from P268 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
P333 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, The 24.1% decrease was due to the increase in
other operating income for the year.

Costs and Expenses

Operating Expenses

Cost and expenses increased from £3,681 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to 8,724 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022, The 137.0% increase in the account was primarily attributable to the
following:

e  Recognition of impairment loss on investment in associate amounting to 9,491 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022 due to the change in the discount and cap rate which resulted to a decline
in the investment fair value of VREIT.

e Decrease in depreciation by 22.2% from 21,910 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
£1,486 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the transfer of some investment
properties to VREIT.

e Decrease in light and power by 18.8% from 2326 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
P265 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the transfer of some investment properties
to VREIT.

e Decrease in outside services by 27.3% from £256 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
P186 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to transfer of some investment properties
to VREIT.

e Decrease in provision for expected credit losses by 20.6% from P309 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to £245 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 improvement in the
accounts and investments for the year.
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e Decrease in taxes, licenses and other fees by 19.5% from #284 million for the year ended December
31, 2021 to 229 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to transfer of some investment
properties to VREIT.

o Decrease in repairs and maintenance by 26.5% from #125 million for the year ended December 31,
2021 to 92 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the transfer of some investment
properties to VREIT.

e Increase in professional fees by 152.9% from B36 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
P91 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the various professional fees related to the
VREIT listing.

e Decrease in advertising and promotions by 15.4% from 225 million for the year ended December
31, 2021 to £21 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the shift to digital marketing
and transfer of some investment properties to VREIT.

e Decrease in rentals by 58.1% from P8 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to 3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the transfer of some investment properties to VREIT.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest income increased from P4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to £11 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022, The 166.4% increase due to higher cash earning interest for the year.

Fair value gain (loss) on investment at fair value through profit or loss decreased from a gain of £5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to a loss of B1 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. The
130.6% decrease resulted from the lower fair value of investment at fair value through FVTPL.

The company also recognized net gain from listing of associate of #11,155 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 as a result of the listing of VREIT.

Equity in net losses of an associate was also recorded for the year ended December 31, 2022 of #3,736 million
pertaining to the share in the loss of VREIT for the year.

Interest expense increased by 15.5% from B563 million in the year ended December 31, 2021 to 650 million
in the year ended December 31, 2022. This is due primarily to the interest pertaining to the lease liabilities
recognized due to the adoption of the PFRS 16.

Provision for Income Tax

Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2022 is $2,037 million an increase of 248.9% from £584
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. This is due primarily to the higher taxable income recorded
for the year.

Net Income

As a result of the foregoing, the Company’s net income increased by 89.8% from £4,408 million in the year
ended December 31, 2021 to £8,367 million in the year ended December 31, 2022,

For the year ended December 31, 2022, there were no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the
financial condition or results of operations of the Company. Neither were there any trends, events or
uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on the net sales or
revenues or income from continuing operations. The Company is not aware of events that will cause a
material change in the relationship between the costs and revenues. Except as discussed in the notes to
financial statements Events after the report date on the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

As of December 31, 2022 vs. December 31, 2021

Total assets as of December 31, 2021 were 280,672 million compared to 891,519 million as of December 31,
2022, or a 13.4% increase. This was due to the following:

Cash and cash equivalents including short term cash investments increased by 1,354.7% from 242
million as of December 31, 2021 to 3,523 million as of December 31, 2022 due to cash proceeds
from the listing of VREIT.

Investments at fair value through profit/loss and other comprehensive income including non-current
portion decreased by 52.8% from 2,682 million as of December 31, 2021 to P1,267 million as of
December 31, 2021 due to the decrease in fair value of quoted equity securities for the year,

Receivables, including non-current portion increased by 36.0% from R18,857 million as of
December 31, 2021 to 825,644 million as of December 31, 2022 due to the increase in accounts
receivable from tenants and accrued rent.

Property and equipment decreased by 35.9% from B57 million as of December 31, 2021 to P37
million as of December 31, 2022 due to depreciation recognized for the year.

Investment associates increased by 4,709.6% from P205 million as of December 31, 2021 to £9,836
million as of December 31, 2022 due primarily to the investments in VREIT classified as associate.

Investment properties decreased by 13.5% from P51,896 million as of December 31, 2021 to
£44,900 million as of December 31, 2022 due primarily to transfer of some investment properties to
VREIT.

Other assets including non-current portion decreased by 7.8% from £3,651 million as of December
31,2021 to £3,367 million as of December 31, 2022 due primarily to decreases in prepaid expenses,
refundable deposits and creditable withholding taxes for the year.

Total liabilities as of December 31, 2022 were B53,712 million compared to 250,821 million as of December
31, 2021, or a 5.7% increase. This was due to the following:

Accounts and other payables decreased by 19.9% from P4,292 million as of December 31, 2021 to
P5,147 million as of December 31, 2022 due to the settlement for the year.

Security deposits and advance rent decreased by 17% from 21,351 million as of December 31, 2021
to R1,122 million as of December 31, 2022 due to transfer of some investment properties to VREIT.

Payable to parent company increased by 5.3% from 231,039 million as of December 31, 2021 to
P32,696 million as of December 31, 2022 due to advances from parent company made during the

year.

Income tax payable decreased by 35.8% from 217 million as of December 31, 2021 to £11 million
as of December 31, 2022 due to the settlements made during the year.

Bank Loans, including non-current portion increased by 8.3% from 22,008 million as of December
31, 2021 to 2,174 million as of December 31, 2022 due to refinancing made during the year.
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e Pension liabilities decreased by 23.6% from P64 million as of December 31, 2021 to P49 million as
of December 31, 2022 due to actuarial adjustments.

e Deferred tax liabilities — net posted an increase of 41.6% from £4,494 million as of December 31,
2021 to 6,365 million as of December 31,2022 due to the increase in temporary differences for the
period that will eventually result to future tax liability.

e  Other non-current liabilities decreased by 28.9% from £917 million as of December 31, 2021 to
P637 million as of December 31, 2022 due to the decrease in the retention payable, advance rent and
payables to contractors.

Total stockholder’s equity increased by 22.0% from £29,851 million as of December 31, 2021 to £36,602
million as of December 31, 2022 to due to the earnings recorded for the year.

Considered as the top five key performance indicators of the Company as shown below:
Key Performance Indicators 12/31/2022 12/31/2021

Current ratio ® 0.44:1 0.37:1
Liability-to-equity ratio ® 1.50:1 1.70:1
Interest coverage © 64.40 3441
Return on assets 9.1% 5.5%
Return on equity 22.9% 14.8%

Naotes:

(a)  Current Ratio: This ratio is obiained by dividing the Current Assets of the Company by its Current liabilities. This ratio is used as a test of the Company ‘s
ligquidity.

()  Liability-to-equity ratio: This ratio is obiained by dividing the C

's Total Liabilities by its Total Equity. The ratio reveals the proportion of debt
and equity @ company is using to finance its businexs. It also measures a comparny s borrowing capacity.

'F

fc)  Interest coverage: This ratio is obtained by dividing eamnings before interest, taxes depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) by the total interest paid.
This ratio shows whether a company is earning enough profits before interest to pay its imterest cost comfortably.

(d)  Renurn on assets: This ratio is obtained by dividing the Company's net income (net of income from acquisition of subsidiary) by its total assets. This
measures the Company's earnings in relation to all of the resources it had at its disposal.

(e)  Return on equity: This ratio is obtained by dividing the C

pany s nef income (net of income from acquisition of subsidiary) by its total equity. This

measures the rate of return on the ownership interest of the Company's stockholders.

Because there are various calculati hods for the perfc ind abave, the Company's presentation of such may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures used by other companies.

Current ratio as of December 31, 2022 increased from that of December 31, 2021 due to the increase in
current assets.

The decrease in liability-to-equity ratio was due to the higher increase in total equity compared to the
increase in liabilities.

Interest coverage for the year ended December 31, 2021 increased because of the higher EBITDA for
the year.

Return on asset increased due to the higher net income for the year.
Return on equity increased due to the higher net income for the year.

Material Changes to the Company’s Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2022 compared to December
31, 2021 (increase/decrease of 5% or more)

Cash and cash equivalents including short term cash investments increased by 1,354.7% from B242

million as of December 31, 2021 to £3,523 million as of December 31, 2022 due to cash proceeds from
the listing of VREIT.
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Investments at fair value through profit/loss and other comprehensive income including non-current
portion decreased by 52.8% from $2,682 million as of December 31, 2021 to B1,267 million as of
December 31, 2021 due to the decrease in fair value of quoted equity securities for the year.

Receivables, including non-current portion increased by 36.0% from £18,857 million as of December
31, 2021 to 25,644 million as of December 31, 2022 due to the increase in accounts receivable from
tenants and accrued rent.

Property and equipment decreased by 35.9% from B57 million as of December 31, 2021 to £37 million
as of December 31, 2022 due to depreciation recognized for the year.

Investment associates increased by 4,709.6% from P205 million as of December 31, 2021 to B9,836
million as of December 31, 2022 due primarily to the investments in VREIT classified as associate.

Investment properties decreased by 13.5% from B51,896 million as of December 31, 2021 to
£44,900 million as of December 31, 2022 due primarily to transfer of some investment properties to
VREIT.

Other assets including non-current portion decreased by 7.8% from £3,651 million as of December 31,
2021 to 23,367 million as of December 31, 2022 due primarily to decreases in prepaid expenses,
refundable deposits and creditable withholding taxes for the year.

Accounts and other payables decreased by 19.9% from P4,292 million as of December 31, 2021 to
5,147 million as of December 31, 2022 due to the settlement for the year.

Security deposits and advance rent decreased by 17% from £1,351 million as of December 31, 2021 to
21,122 million as of December 31, 2022 due to transfer of some investment properties to VREIT.

Payable to parent company increased by 5.3% from £31,039 million as of December 31, 2021 to
32,696 million as of December 31, 2022 due to advances from parent company made during the year.

Income tax payable decreased by 35.8% from 217 million as of December 31, 2021 to 211 million as of
December 31, 2022 due to the settlements made during the year.

Bank Loans, including non-current portion increased by 8.3% from £2,008 million as of December 31,
2021 to 2,174 million as of December 31, 2022 due to refinancing made during the year.

Pension liabilities decreased by 23.6% from 264 million as of December 31, 2021 to £49 million as of
December 31, 2022 due to actuarial adjustments.

Deferred tax liabilities — net posted an increase of 41.6% from 4,494 million as of December 31, 2021
to £6,365 million as of December 31, 2022 due to the increase in temporary differences for the period
that will eventually result to future tax liability.

Other non-current liabilities decreased by 28.9% from P917 million as of December 31, 2021 to
P637 million as of December 31, 2022 due to the decrease in the retention payable, advance rent and
payables to contractors.

Material Changes to the Company’s Statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2022
compared to the year ended December 31, 2021 (increase/decrease of 5% or more)
Rental income increased from £8,836 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to 211,711 million

for the year ended December 31, 2022. The 32.5% increase was due to the increase in occupancy and
increase in the rental rate for the year.
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Parking fee revenue decreased from £122 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to £99 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022. The 18.8% decrease was due to lower number of vehicles using
the mall parking space.

Other operating income increased from P268 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
£333 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. The 24.1% decrease was due to the increase in other
operating income for the year.

Recognition of impairment loss on investment in associate amounting to £9,491 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022 due to the change in the discount and cap rate which resulted to a decline in
the investment fair value of VREIT.

Decrease in depreciation by 22.2% from £1,910 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
£1,486 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the transfer of some investment properties
to VREIT.

Decrease in light and power by 18.8% from B326 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
2265 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the transfer of some investment properties to
VREIT.

Decrease in outside services by 27.3% from P256 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
P186 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to transfer of some investment properties to
VREIT.

Decrease in provision for expected credit losses by 20.6% from 309 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to £245 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 improvement in the accounts
and investments for the year.

Decrease in taxes, licenses and other fees by 19.5% from 2284 million for the year ended December 31,
2021 to 2229 million for the year ended December 31,2022 due to transfer of some investment properties
to VREIT.

Decrease in repairs and maintenance by 26.5% from 2125 million for the year ended December 31, 2021
to 92 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the transfer of some investment properties
to VREIT.

Increase in professional fees by 152.9% from B36 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
P91 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the various professional fees related to the
VREIT listing.

Decrease in advertising and promotions by 15.4% from $25 million for the year ended December 31,
2021 to £21 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the shift to digital marketmg and
transfer of some investment properties to VREIT.

Decrease in rentals by 58.1% from B8 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to £3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the transfer of some investment properties to VREIT.

Interest income increased from P4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to 211 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022. The 166.4% increase due to higher cash earning interest for the year.

Fair value gain (loss) on investment at fair value through profit or loss decreased from a gain of P5
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to a loss of 21 million for the year ended December 31,
2022. The 130.6% decrease resulted from the lower fair value of investment at fair value through FVTPL.

The company also recognized net gain from listing of associate of #11,155 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 as a result of the listing of VREIT.
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Equity in net losses of an associate was also recorded for the year ended December 31, 2022 of £3,736
million pertaining to the share in the loss of VREIT for the year.

Interest expense increased by 15.5% from B563 million in the year ended December 31, 2021 to 2650
million in the year ended December 31, 2022. This is due primarily to the interest pertaining to the lease
liabilities recognized due to the adoption of the PFRS 16.

Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2022 is #2,037 million an increase of 248.9% from B584
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. This is due primarily to the higher taxable income
recorded for the year.

The Company’s net income increased by 89.8% from P4,408 million in the year ended December 31,
2021 to P8,367 million in the year ended December 31, 2022,

For the year ended December 31, 2022, there were no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the
financial condition or results of operations of the Company. Neither were there any trends, events or
uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on the net sales or
revenues or income from continuing operations. The Company is not aware of events that will cause a
material change in the relationship between the costs and revenues. Except as discussed in the notes to
financial statements Events after the report date on the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations.

REVIEW OF YEAR END 2021 VS YEAR END 2020

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues

Operating revenue

Operating revenue increased from 27,273 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to £9,226 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021. The 26.9% increase in the account was primarily attributable to the
following:

e Rental income increased from B6,843 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to P8,836
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The 29.1% increase was due to the increase in
occupancy and increase in the rental rate.

o Parking fee revenue increased from 2115 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to #122
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The 5.9% increase was due to higher number of
vehicles using the mall parking space.

e Other operating income decreased from R314 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
P268 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The 14.8% decrease was due to the decrease
in gain on derecognition of liabilities.

Costs and Expenses

Operating Expenses

Cost and expenses decreased from $2,936 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to 3,681 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021. The 25.4% increase in the account was primarily attributable to the
following:

e Increase in depreciation by 23.6% from R1,546 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
£1,910 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to the additional depreciation from the
additions of investment properties and property and equipment.
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® Increase in light and power by 40.1% from £233 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
P326 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to the increase in the consumption in light
and power as a result of longer mall operating hours.

e Decrease in outside services by 8.8% from 280 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
256 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to cost rationalization.

e Decrease in salaries and employee benefits by 5.8% from 253 million for the year ended December
31, 2020 to £238 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to the decrease in manpower
for the operations and management.

e Increase in provision for impairment loss by 275.7% from 82 million for the year ended December
31, 2020 to 309 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to the increase in accounts
receivable from tenants.

® Decrease in advertising and promotions by 23.9% from B32 million for the year ended December
31, 2020 to P25 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to the shift to digital marketing.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest income decreased from P45 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to 4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021. The 90.6% decrease resulted from the lower interest earned from in cash in banks,
investments and receivables of the company for the year.

Fair value gain (loss) on investment at fair value through profit or loss increased from a loss of B7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020 to a gain of 25 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The
162.2% increase resulted from the higher fair value of investment at fair value through FVTPL.

Interest expense increased by 7.8% from £522 million in the year ended December 31, 2020 to 563 million
in the year ended December 31, 2021. This is due primarily to the interest pertaining to the of lease liabilities
recognized due to the adoption of the PFRS 16.

Provision for Income Tax

Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 is £584 million a decrease of 48.4% from 21,132 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020. This is due primarily to the lower taxable income recorded for the
year.

Net Income

As a result of the foregoing, the Company’s net income increased by 62.0% from £2,721 million in the year
ended December 31, 2020 to 24,408 million in the year ended December 31, 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, there were no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the
financial condition or results of operations of the Company. Neither were there any trends, events or
uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on the net sales or
revenues or income from continuing operations. The Company is not aware of events that will cause a
material change in the relationship between the costs and revenues. Except as discussed in the notes to
financial statements Events after the report date on the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

As of December 31, 2021 vs. December 31, 2020

Total assets as of December 31, 2020 were £73,692 million compared to 80,672 million as of December 31,
2021, or a 9.5% increase. This was due to the following:

Cash and cash equivalents including short term cash investments increased by 40.9% from B172
million as of December 31, 2020 to 242 million as of December 31, 2021 due to higher cash
provided from operating activities for the period.

Investments at fair value through profit/loss and other comprehensive income including non-current
portion decreased by 39% from 3,543 million as of December 31, 2020 to £2,682 million as of
December 31, 2020 due to the decrease in fair value of quoted equity securities for the year.

Receivables, including non-current portion increased by 38.3% from £13,635 million as of
December 31, 2020 to 218,857 million as of December 31, 2021 due to the increase in accounts
receivable from tenants and accrued rent.

Property and equipment decreased by 12.8% from $65 million as of December 31, 2020 to B57
million as of December 31, 2021 due to depreciation recognized for the year.

Investment properties increased by 4.9% from 49,475 million as of December 31, 2020 to £51,896
million as of December 31, 2021 due primarily to the additions to commercial developments,
acquisition of land for commercial development during the year.

Total liabilities as of December 31, 2021 were P50,821 million compared to 47,261 million as of December
31, 2020, or a 7.5% increase. This was due to the following:

[ ]

Accounts and other payables increased by 5.1% from £4,082 million as of December 31, 2020 to
$£4,292 million as of December 31, 2021 due to the increase in accounts payable to contractors and
suppliers, and retention payable for the year.

Security deposits and advance rent increased by 84.0% from £734 million as of December 31, 2020
to 21,351 million as of December 31, 2021 due to the additional deposits from new lessees for malls
and offices as well as top up of security deposits and advance rent based on escalation.

Payable to parent company increased by 5.4% from £29,461 million as of December 31, 2020 to
$£31,039 million as of December 31, 2021 due to advances from parent company made during the
year.

Income tax payable decreased by 51.3% from P35 million as of December 31, 2020 to £17 million
as of December 31, 2021 due to the settlements made during the year.

Bank Loans, including non-current portion decreased by 32.4% from B2,972 million as of December
31, 2020 to 2,008 million as of December 31, 2021 due to payments made during the year.

Lease liabilities increased by 77.7% from £3,737 as of December 31, 2020 to 26,639 million as of
December 31, 2021 due to amendment in the lease contract.

Pension liabilities decreased by 9.6% from 71 million as of December 31, 2020 to 64 million as
of December 31, 2021 due to actuarial adjustments.

Deferred tax liabilities — net posted an increase of 10.8% from £4,056 million as of December 31,

2020 to 4,494 million as of December 31, 2021 due to the increase in temporary differences for the
period that will eventually result to future tax liability.
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e  Other non-current liabilities decreased by 56.6% from £2,113 million as of December 31, 2020 to
£917 million as of December 31, 2021 due to the decrease in the noncurrent portion of payables to
contractors.

Total stockholder’s equity increased by 12.9% from 26,431 million as of December 31, 2020 to #29,851
million as of December 31, 2021 to due to the earnings recorded for the year.

Considered as the top five key performance indicators of the Company as shown below:

Key Performance Indicators 12/31/2021 12/31/2020
Current ratio ® 0.37:1 0.33:1
Liability-to-equity ratio ® 1.70:1 1.79:1
Interest coverage © 34.41 34.21
Return on assets 9 5.5% 3.7%
Return on equity © 14.8% 10.3%

Nores:

(a)  Current Ratio: This ratio is obtained by dividing the Current Assets of the Company by its Current liabilities. This ratio is used as a test of the Company s

liquidirs
() Liabiliey-to-equity ratio: This ratio is ob ! by dividing the Company s Total Liabilities by its Total Equity. The ratio reveals the proportion of debt
and equity a company is using to finance its busi 1 also a company s barrowing capacify.

(c)  Interest coverage: This rafio is obtained by dividing earnings before interest, taves depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) by the total interest paid.
This ratio shows whether a company is earning enough profits before interest to pay its inferesi cast comfortably.

(d)  Return on assets: This ratio is obtained by dividing the Company's net income (net of income from acquisition of subsidiary) by its total assets. This
measures the Company's earnings in relation to all of the resources it had at its disposal.

fe)  Return on equity: This ratio is obtained by dividing the Company's net income (net of income from acquisition of subsidiary) by its total equity. This
measures the rate of return on the ownership interest of the Company 's stockholders.

Because there are various calcular hods for the perfo indi abave, the Company s presentation aof such may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures used by other companies.

Current ratio as of December 31, 2021 increased from that of December 31, 2020 due to the increase in
current assets.

The decrease in liability-to-equity ratio was due to the higher increase in total liabilities compared to the
increase in equity.

Interest coverage for the year ended December 31, 2021 increased because of the higher EBITDA for
the year.

Return on asset increased due to the higher net income for the year.
Return on equity increased due to the higher net income for the year.

Material Changes to the Company’s Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2021 compared to December
31, 2020 (increase/decrease of 5% or more)

Cash and cash equivalents including short term cash investments increased by 40.9% from £172 million
as of December 31, 2020 to £242 million as of December 31, 2021 due to higher cash provided from
operating activities for the period.

Investments at fair value through profitloss and other comprehensive income including non-current
portion decreased by 39% from B3,543 million as of December 31, 2020 to 2,682 million as of
December 31, 2020 due to the decrease in fair value of quoted equity securities for the year.

Receivables, including non-current portion increased by 38.3% from £13,635 million as of December

31, 2020 to 218,857 million as of December 31, 2021 due to the increase in accounts receivable from
tenants and accrued rent.
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Property and equipment decreased by 12.8% from £65 million as of December 31, 2020 to 57 million
as of December 31, 2021 due to depreciation recognized for the year.

Investment properties increased by 4.9% from 49,475 million as of December 31, 2020 to #51,896
million as of December 31, 2021 due primarily to the additions to commercial developments, acquisition
of land for commercial development during the year.

Accounts and other payables increased by 5.1% from £4,082 million as of December 31, 2020 to
4,292 million as of December 31, 2021 due to the increase in accounts payable to contractors and
suppliers, and retention payable for the year.

Security deposits and advance rent increased by 84.0% from £734 million as of December 31, 2020 to
P1,351 million as of December 31, 2021 due to the additional deposits from new lessees for malls and
offices as well as top up of security deposits and advance rent based on escalation.

Payable to parent company increased by 5.4% from $£29,461 million as of December 31, 2020 to
P31,039 million as of December 31, 2021 due to advances from parent company made during the year.

Income tax payable decreased by 51.3% from B35 million as of December 31, 2020 to 17 million as of
December 31, 2021 due to the settlements made during the year.

Bank Loans, including non-current portion decreased by 32.4% from 22,972 million as of December 31,
2020 to £2,008 million as of December 31, 2021 due to payments made during the year.

Lease liabilities increased by 77.7% from B3,737 as of December 31, 2020 to £6,639 million as of
December 31, 2021 due to amendment in the lease contract.

Pension liabilities decreased by 9.6% from B71 million as of December 31, 2020 to 64 million as of
December 31, 2021 due to actuarial adjustments.

Deferred tax liabilities — net posted an increase of 10.8% from £4,056 million as of December 31, 2020
to P4,494 million as of December 31, 2021 due to the increase in temporary differences for the period
that will eventually result to future tax liability.

Other non-current liabilities decreased by 56.6% from £2,113 million as of December 31, 2020 to
P917 million as of December 31, 2021 due to the decrease in the noncurrent portion of payables to
contractors.

Material Changes to the Company’s Statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2021
compared to the year ended December 31, 2020 (increase/decrease of 5% or more)

Rental income increased from P6,843 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to P8,836 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021. The 29.1% increase was due to the increase in occupancy and
increase in the rental rate.

Parking fee revenue increased from 115 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to £122 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021. The 5.9% increase was due to higher number of vehicles using
the mall parking space.

Other operating income decreased from R314 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
P268 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The 14.8% decrease was due to the decrease in gain
on derecognition of liabilities.

Increase in depreciation by 23.6% from 1,546 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to

P1,910 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to the additional depreciation from the
additions of investment properties and property and equipment.
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Increase in light and power by 40.1% from 2233 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
P326 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to the increase in the consumption in light and
power as a result of longer mall operating hours.

Decrease in outside services by 8.8% from P280 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
P256 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to cost rationalization.

Decrease in salaries and employee benefits by 5.8% from #253 million for the year ended December 31,
2020 to 238 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to the decrease in manpower for the
operations and management.

Increase in provision for impairment loss by 275.7% from P82 million for the year ended December 31,
2020 to P309 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to the increase in accounts receivable
from tenants.

Decrease in advertising and promotions by 23.9% from 232 million for the year ended December 31,
2020 to 25 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to the shift to digital marketing.

Interest income decreased from P45 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to P4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021. The 90.6% decrease resulted from the lower interest earned from in cash
in banks, investments and receivables of the company for the year.

Fair value gain (loss) on investment at fair value through profit or loss increased from a loss of 7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020 to a gain of 5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021.
The 162.2% increase resulted from the higher fair value of investment at fair value through FVTPL.

Interest expense increased by 7.8% from 2522 million in the year ended December 31, 2020 to £563
million in the year ended December 31, 2021. This is due primarily to the interest pertaining to the of
lease liabilities recognized due to the adoption of the PFRS 16.

Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 is 584 million a decrease of 48.4% from 81,132
million for the year ended December 31, 2020. This is due primarily to the lower taxable income
recorded for the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, there were no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the
financial condition or results of operations of the Company. Neither were there any trends, events or
uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on the net sales or
revenues or income from continuing operations. The Company is not aware of events that will cause a
material change in the relationship between the costs and revenues. Except as discussed in the notes to
financial statements Events after the report date on the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

There are no significant clements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Group is contingently liable with respect to guarantees arising in the ordinary course of business,
including surety bonds, letters of guarantee for performance and bonds for its entire real estate project.

The Philippines continues to experience economic difficulties relating to currency fluctuations, volatile stock
markets and slowdown in growth. Management is of the opinion that losses, if any, from these events and
conditions will not have material effects on the Group’s financial statements.

Any known trends or any known demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will result in or
that are reasonably likely to result in the registrant’s liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material

way. The registrant shall indicate balance sheet conditions or an income or cash flow item that it

believes may be indicators of its liquidity condition.
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The scope, extent and nature of the services to be referred to, and/or to be rendered by, the appointed External
Auditor of the Company has to be unanimously approved by the Audit Committee in a meeting duly called
for the purpose, including the fees to be paid for the services thus rendered and/or referred. In relation to the
audit of the Company's annual financial statements, the Company's Corporate Governance Manual provides
that the audit committee shall, among other activities (i) evaluate significant issues reported by the external
auditors in relation to the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of policies, controls, processes and activities
of the Company; (ii) ensure that other non-audit work provided by the external auditors are not in conflict
with their functions as external auditors; and (iii) ensure the compliance of the Company with acceptable
auditing and accounting standards and regulations.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

The Group has adopted some revisions and annual improvements to the PFRS (Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards) that are relevant to the Group and effective for the financial statements beginning on or afier
January 1, 2018 as discussed in Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended
December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021.

As such, the comparative amounts contained in the audited financial statements may differ from those
previously presented in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023, 2022
and 2021.

There are no disagreements with auditors on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial
statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which, if not resolved to their satisfaction, would have
caused the auditors to make reference thereto in their reports on the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries.
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PART III - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer
Board of Directors and Executive Officers

The table below sets forth the members of the Company's Board and Executive Officers as of December 31,
2023.

NAME AGE POSITION CITIZENSHIP
Manuel B. Villar Jr. 74 Chairman Filipino
Manuel Paolo A. Villar 47 Director and President Filipino
Cynthia J. Javarez 60 Director & Treasurer Filipino
Camille A. Villar 38 Director Filipino
Achawin Asavabhokhin 48 Director Thai
Cherrylyn P. Caoile 49 Independent Director Filipino
Marilou O. Adea 72 Independent Director Filipino
Brian N. Edang 45 Chief Financial Officer Filipino
& Head, Investor
Relations
Ma. Nalen Rosero 52 Chief Information Filipino
Officer &
Corporate Secretary
Arbin Omar Carifio 42 Compliance Officer & Filipino
Assistant Corporate
Secretary
Melissa Camille Z. Domingo 36 Chief Audit Executive Filipino
Rowena B. Bandigan 46 Chief Accountant Filipino
Florence R. Bernardo 53 Head, Mall Operations Filipino

* Business Experience of the named directors and officers covers the past five (3) years.

MANUEL B. VILLAR JR., Chairman, was Senator of the Philippines from 2001 to June 2013. He served
as Senate President from 2006 to 2008. He also served as a Congressman from 1992 to 2001 and as Speaker
of the House of Representatives from 1998 to 2000. A Certified Public Accountant, Mr. Villar graduated
from the University of the Philippines in 1970 with the degree of Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration and in 1973 with the degree of Masters in Business Administration. He founded Camella
Homes in the early 1970s and successfully managed said company over the years, to become the largest
homebuilder in the Philippines now known as the Vista Land Group. Mr. Villar is also Chairman of the Board
of Vistamalls, Inc. (formerly Starmalls, Inc.), AllHome Corp., AllDay Marts, Inc. and Golden MV Holdings,
Inc. (formerly Golden Bria Holdings, Inc.).He is a member of the following organizations: Makati Business
Club, Manila Golf Club, Management Association of the Philippines, Financial Executive Institute of the
Philippines (FINEX), Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Villar Social Institute for
Poverty Alleviation and Governance (SIPAG).

MANUEL PAOLO A. VILLAR, Director and President, graduated from the Wharton School of the
University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, USA with a Bachelor of Science in Economics and Bachelor of
Applied Science in 1999, He was an Analyst for McKinsey &Co. in the United States from 1999 to 2001. He
joined the Vista Land Group in 2001 as Head of Corporate Planning then became the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company in 2008. He was elected President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in July 2011
and President of Vistamalls, Inc. (formerly Starmalls, Inc.) in June 2019. In addition, he is the President and
CEO of VistaREIT, Inc., CEO and Chairman of St. Augustine Gold and Copper Limited and Chairman of
TVI Resources Development Philippines, Inc., Camella Homes, Inc., Communities Philippines, Inc., Crown
Asia Properties, Inc., Brittany Corporation, Vista Residences, Inc., and Powersource Phils Development
Corp. Mr. Villar is also the majority shareholder of Prime Asset Ventures, Inc., and a director of Fine
Properties, Inc, AllHome Corp. and AllDay Marts, Inc.
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CYNTHIA J. JAVAREZ, Director and Treasurer, Ms. Javarcz graduated from the University of the East
with a degree in Bachelor of Science in Business Administration major in Accounting. She is a Certified
Public Accountant. She completed a Management Development Program at the Asian Institute of
Management in 2006. Ms. Javarez was previously the Chief Financial Officer of Polar Property Holdings
Corp. until 2011 and the Tax & Audit Head in the MB Villar Group of Companies until 2007. She was the
Controller and Chief Financial Officer of Vista Land since 2013 until she became Chief Operating Officer
from November 2018 to June 2022. She was the President of Camella Homes, Inc., Communities Philippines,
Inc., Crown Asia Properties, Inc., Brittany Corporation and Vista Residences, Inc. until 2021. She is currently
the Chairperson of the Board of Prime Asset Ventures, Inc. and is the President of Fine Properties, Inc.

CAMIILE A. VILLAR, Managing Director, Vista Land Commercial Division. Ms, Villar, graduated from
Ateneo de Manila University with the degree of Bachelor of Science in Management. She obtained her
Masters in Business Administration, Global Executive MBA Program from the Instituto de Estudios
Superiores de la Eprese (IESE) Business School, Barcelona, Spain. She joined the Corporate
Communications Group of Brittany in 2007 until she assumed the position of Managing Director of Vista
Land Commercial. She is a Director of Vistamalls, Inc. (formerly Starmalls, Inc.) and Golden MV Holdings,
Inc. (formerly Golden Bria Holdings, Inc.). She is also the Concurrent President of All Value Holdings Corp.,
and the Vice Chairman of AllHome Corp. and AllDay Marts, Inc. Ms. Villar is currently a Congresswoman,
representing Las Pinas City.

ACHAWIN ASAVABHOKIN, Director, Mr. Asavabhokhin graduated from the University of Pennsylvania
with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering, System Science and Engineering. He holds various
licenses as Fund Manager, Derivative Fund Manager and Investment Planner. He is currently a Director of
Land and Houses Public Company Limited, since 2018, Quality Houses Public Co., Ltd., since 2017 and
Home Product Center Public Co., Ltd., since 2014, He is concurrently the Chief Marketing Officer and Senior
Executive Vice President (EVP) at SCB Asset Management Co. Ltd. He previously held various positions
under the same Company as the EVP, Group Head of Products & Foreign Fixed Income, Department Head
for International Investment and EVP for Product & Foreign Fixed Income from January 2015 to September
2018.

CHERRYLYN P. CAOILE, Independent Director, Atty. Caoile obtained her Bachelor of Science in Legal
Management from the De La Salle University and eamed the degree of Juris Doctor in Ateneo de Manila
School of Law. She worked in Picazo Buyco Tan Fider & Santos in 1998, where she became a partner in
2009 until 2019, She served as an Assistant Professor in Commercial Law Department for De La Salle
University — College of Business & Economics from 2003 to 2005. Ms. Caoile was recently the legal
consultant of House of Representatives, Committee on Economic Affairs. She is currently the Chairman of
the Board of Taipan Security Services, Inc. and currently the Independent Director of Vista Land &
Lifescapes, Inc., Vistamalls, Inc., and VProperty, Inc. She was formerly the Director of MJC Investment
Corporation, Narra Wellness Resorts, Inc., and PALI Investments, Inc. She was appointed as the Corporate
Secretary of MetroPac Water Investments, Inc. and was formerly the Assistant Corporate Secretary of Smart
Communications, Inc., Paymaya Philippines, Inc, and MPCALA Holdings, Inc. Atty. Caoile possesses all the
qualifications and none of the disqualifications of an Independent Director under SRC Rule 38 since election
as such.

MARILOU O. ADEA, Independent Director, Ms. Adea is currently a Consultant of FBO Management
Network, Inc. and a Director of Malarayat Rural Bank, Inc. She was the Court Appointed Rehabilitation
Receiver of Anna-Lynns, Inc., Manuela Corporation and 3N2J Shipping & Trading Services, Inc. Ms. Adea
previously served as the Independent Director for Vista Land and Lifescapes, Inc. from 2007 to 2021, Project
Director for Site Acquisition Director of Digital Telecommunications Phils. Inc. from 2000 to 2002,
Executive Director for FBO Management Network, Inc. from 1989 to 2000 and BF Homes Inc. in
Receivership from 1988 to 1994 and Vice President for Finance & Administration for L&H Resources
Management Corporation from 1986 to 1988. She worked with the Home Development Mutual Fund from
1978 to 1986. Ms. Adea holds a Degree in Bachelor of Science in Business Administration Major in
Marketing Management from the University of the Philippines.

BRIAN N. EDANG, Chief Financial Officer and Head Investor Relations, Mr. Edang is a Certified Public
Accountant. He graduated cum laude with a Bachelor of Science in Accountancy from the University of St.
La Salle - Bacolod. He is currently the Treasurer and Director of the following companies: Vista Residences,
Inc., Brittany Corporation, Crown Asia Properties, Crown Asia Properties, Inc., Communities Philippines,
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Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change in Control Arrangements
The Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement for payment of compensation other than what

has been included above. Executive officers are considered employees of the Company, but their contracts
with the Company are not in writing. The Company has no arrangement for termination of employment.

Warrants and options held by the executive officers and directors

There are no outstanding warrants or options held by the Company’s CEQ, the named executive officers, and
all officers and directors as a group.

Significant employee

The Company has high regard for its human resources. It expects ecach employee to do his part in achieving

the Company’s goals and objectives.

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Security Ownership of Record and Beneficial Owners

Security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners of more than 5.0% of the voting securities as of
December 31, 2023:

Name of
Beneficial Owner
Name/Address of Record [Relationship
Title of Class Owners and Relationship with Record No. of Shares % of
of Securities with Us Owner Citizenship Held Ownership!
Common Vista Land & Lifescapes, Inc.  Record Owner Filipino 7,443,192,641 69.0721%
N is al
Sl LGF Bldg B, Evia Lifestyle ;)Sen:f(':cial
Center, Vista City, Daang Owner
Hari, Almanza II, Las Pifias
City
Shareholder
Common Land & Houses Public Record Owner Thai 808,431,465 7.5022%
Shares Company Limited is also
ficial
Q. House, Convent Building, ?)c\:;e: .
4t & 5% Floors, No. 38
Convent Road, Silom,
Bangkok, Thailand
Sharcholder
Preferred Fine Properties Inc. Record Owner Filipino 2,350,000,000 21.8078%
is al
MR LGF Bldg B, EviaLifestyle o0 .
Center, Vista City, Daang Owner
Hari, Almanza 11, Las Pifias
City
Shareholder
!Based on the total issued and outstanding shares (common and preferred) of 10,775,981, 156 as of December 31, 2023
Security Ownership of Management
Security ownership of certain management as of December 31, 2023:
] . Amount & " . Percent of
Title of Class Name of Beneficial Owner Nature of Citizenship Class
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Beneficial
Ownership

Common
Shares

Manuel B. Villar Jr.

C. Masibay Street, BF Resort
Village, Las Pifias City

1,000 — Direct

Filipino

0.00001%

Preferred
Shares

Manuel B. Villar Jr.

C. Masibay Street, BF Resort
Village, Las Pifias City

2,350,000,000 —
Indirect

Filipino

21.80776%

Common
Shares

Manuel Paolo A. Villar

C. Masibay Street, BF Resort
Village, Las Piiias City

1,000 — Direct

Filipino

0.00001%

Common
Shares

Cynthia J. Javarez

B3A/L2 Vetta di Citta Italia,
Imus, Cavite

1,000 — Direct

Filipino

0.00001%

Common
Shares

Camille A. Villar

C. Masibay Street, BF Resort
Village, Las Pifias City

100 — Indirect

Filipino

0.000001%

Common
Shares

Achawin Asavabhokin

501105 Langsuan Road,
Bangkok, Thailand

1,000 — Indirect

0.00001%

Common
Shares

Cherrylyn P. Caoile

U12 Verde de Pasadena
Townhomes, 209 Pasadena
Drive, San Juan City

1,000 — Indirect

Filipino

0.00001%

Common
Shares

Marilou O. Adea

44 Istanbul Street, BF Homes,
Paranaque City

1,000 — Indirect

Filipino

0.00001%

Brian N. Edang

B11 L16 Pacita 2, San Pedro,
Laguna

Filipino

Ma. Nalen SJ. Rosero

Block 5 Lot 2A New
Victorianne Row La Posada
Subdivision, Sucat, Muntinlupa

City

Filipino

Arbin Omar P. Carifio

Unit 4 Wedgewood Estated
Eymard Drive Brgy. Kristong
Hari, Quezon City

Filipino

Melissa Camille Z. Domingo

62A Labo St., Sta. Mesa
Heights, Brgy. San Isidro
Labrador, Quezon City

Filipino

Rowena B. Bandigan

Filipino
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B3 L6 P2 Dolmar Golden Hills
Subd., Loma de Gato, Marilao
Bulacan

- Florence R. Bernardo - Filipino -

Blk6 Lot 1 Farano St., Mille
Luce Subdivision, Antipolo

City
AGGREGATE SHAREHOLDINGS 2,350,006,100 21.80782%

Yoting Trust Holders of 5.0% or More

As of December 31, 2023, there is no party holding any voting trust for 5% or more of total shares outstanding.
Changes In Control
As of December 31, 2023, there was no arrangement which may result in a change in control of the Company.

Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company is a subsidiary of Vista Land & Lifescapes, Inc. (VLL). It enters into transactions with
associates and related parties, in its regular course of business, consisting mainly of advances and
reimbursement of expenses and purchase and sell of real estate properties. These transactions to and from
related parties are made on arm’s length basis and at current market prices at the time of the transactions.

No transaction, without proper disclosure, was undertaken by the Company in which any Director or
Executive Officer, nominee for election as Director, or any member of its immediate family was involved or
had a direct or indirect material interest.

No single Director or Executive Officer, nominee for election as Director, or any member of their immediate
family owns or holds more than 10% of the Company’s voting shares.

Please refer to Notes on Related Party Transactions of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the
2023 Audited Financial Statements, which is incorporated herein in the accompanying Index to Exhibits.
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PART V — SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

VISTAMALLS, INC.

Annex A: Sustainability Report

CONTEXTUAL INFORMATION

Company Details

Name of Organization VISTAMALLS, INC. (PSE:STR)

Location of Headquarters Lower Ground Floor, Building B, EVIA Lifestyle Center, Vista City, Daanghari,
Almanza I, Las Pifias City 1750

Location of Operations Nationwide

Report Boundary: Legal This report covers the economic, social, and governance performances and policies of
entities (e.g., subsidiaries) the Company. For the environmental performance and policies, Vistamalls reports on
included in this report sites that comprise more than 50% of the overall gross floor area, specifically:
® Evia Lifestyle Center - Daang Hari Road, Vista Alabang, Las Pifias
City
e Starmall EDSA Shaw — Harvard St., Mandaluyong City
® Vista Mall Bataan — Brgy. Cupang Proper, Roman Superhighway,
Balanga, Bataan
® NOMO — A Vista Lifestyle Center - Molino Boulevard, Bacoor
City, Cavite
® Vista Mall Taguig- Levi Mariano Avenue, Brgy. Ususan, Taguig
City
e Worldwide Corporate Center, Shaw Blvd. Brgy. Highway Hills,
Mandaluyong City

Business Model, Vistamalls, Inc. (“Vista Malls” or “the Company™) is primarily engaged in
including Primary investment, real estate, and leasing business. The Company is the holding company
Activities, Brands, of the Vistamalls Group which is engaged in the leasing of retail malls and Business
g:;gil,l::: gl Process Outsourcing (BPO) commercial centers. Vistamalls owns and operates a

network of malls strategically located throughout Mega Manila and in key cities of
the country. As of 2023, the Company runs 42 malls, 56 commercial centers, and 7
offices.

Reporting Period January 1, 2023 — December 31, 2023

Highest Ranking Person Brian N. Edang
responsible for this report Chief Financial Officer, Head of Investor Relations
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Materiality Process

Vistamalls Inc, as with the other subsidiaries identified as part of the Villar Group companies, are guided by
the GRI and SASB Standards in the conduct of their materiality processes.

This includes the following steps:

1. Pre-identification of topics — Issues and topics from different references such as the sector-
specific publications from GRI and SASB standards for real estate, and industry peers were collated. The
topical list was simplified with a few additional ones to ensure that the economic, environmental, social, and
governance (EESG) aspects of the organization are covered.

.3 Identification of Material Topics — The Company revisited the list to assess if the topics are
material to the operations and its stakeholders. An online form is provided that allows the Company to identify
topics that are material by selecting ‘Yes’ or ‘No’.

3. Materiality Assessment —Topics deemed as material are processed into an online survey where
the Company further assessed the criticality of impact of each topic using a five-point scale — 1 as low to no
impact and 5 as highest impact. In 2023, Vistamalls extended the online survey to other departments to capture
more insights on the issues in the company.

Most respondents expressed enthusiastic views towards discussions on sustainability. Most of them believe
sustainability means being existent for a long time and surpassing any crises. Others see it based on the ability
to provide the needed resources without causing negative impacts to the present and future generations. With
these, the respondents affirm that sustainability is critical to the overall success of the business to continuously
provide quality service for the customers and be one of the major players in the mall industry.

On the organizational level, the respondents recognized some of the areas that Vistamalls is performing well
in terms of sustainability. These areas include the following:

providing world class mall experiences to the customers
environmental practices for managing wastes, energy, and water
investing on new projects and ideas, and on the digitization of services
prudent use of financial resources and effective austerity measures

To further contribute to the sustainability of the Company, the respondents suggest the following initiatives
and goals to be set up:

invest more on green building practices such as installing renewable energy
intensify digitization of services to promote contactless transactions

offer products and services that are friendly for the environment

continue supporting local suppliers

more efficient planning of projects to lessen change orders and variation orders.
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Incentive programs, feedback systems, and being informed regularly on accomplishments or progress of
different company programs would encourage the respondents more to get involved in the Company’s
sustainability journey.

Table 1. Material Topics 2023 Arranged According to Degree! of Impact

2023 Topics

Marketing & Promotion
Occupational Health and Safety
Store Lease

Well-being
Innovation

Human Rights
Governance

Customer Satisfaction
Community

Regulatory Compliance
Water Use

Economic Performance
Ethical Business Practices
Energy

Water Management
LandUse

Green Buildings

' Land Escape Impacts
Emissions '

OO0 Oyt bt Rl W W N

10

R T T Sy
B W =

[
wh

The results show a growing criticality for conducting Marketing and Promotion within
the organization. Occupational Health and Safety and Store Lease shared the second
rank in terms of criticality while Well-being and Innovation tied for third most critical
topics in 2023.

1 Topics with similar rankings have the same weighted average based on the materiality assessment results.
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ECONOMIC AND GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES

Economic Performance

Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed’

Amount (in millions PhP)

Disclosure?

2022 2021

Direct economic value generated 13,139.78 12,142.52] 9,226.07
(revenue)

Direct economic value distributed:

a. Operating costs 1,542.34 1,046.30 1,248.59
b. Employee wages and benefits 272.73 24541 238.16
c. Payments to suppliers, other operati 447.82 378.76 543.35
costs

d. Dividends given to stockholders and 153.87 134.70 239.93

interest payments to loan providers

e. Taxes given to government 3,019.77 2,258.77 867.85
f. Investments to community (e.g., donations, 27.52 26.83 2.45
CSR)

Impact Stakeholders Affected

The Company’s ability to sustainably generate value | Employees, Community, Suppliers, Investors,
helps provide quality employment for its stakeholders. | Government, Customers

This allows people financial capabilities to support the
overall economic health and growth for its local
communities.

2hased on Vistamalls, Inc. consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2023
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Additionally, the taxes paid by the Company serve to
finance public services and bolster governmental
initiatives that benefit the people.

Vistamalls showed encouragement as it has registered a
8.21% increase in its economic performance as
compared with 2022.

At the start of 2022, Vistamalls started to open all its
commercial spaces and continue the construction of
commercial projects. Vistamalls reported an increase in
its revenues as it also opened new commercial centers
that houses tenants that offer essential services i.e.,
home store and supermarket.

In 2023, Vistamalls continues to contribute its financial
resources to its stakeholders marking an increase for
every economical value distributed with 47% for land
development, commercial building construction and
operating requirements, 11% marked up for employees
through wages and benefits, 18% for suppliers,
contractors, and other vendors, 14% for stockholders,
34% for the government in the form of taxes, and 3%
for community investments.

The Company reported zero seasonal factors such as
trends, events or other uncertainties that had a material
impact on its financial status or its operations in 2023.

Management Approach to Impacts

The Company based its financial sustainability on efficient resource management. Vistamalls managed
its finances through careful and regular checks on its portfolio, with liability management activities
conducted whenever necessary.

Its annual and quarterly reports were prepared based on Philippine Financial Reporting Standards,
audited by a third-party auditing firm, and submitted to the relevant regulatory agency. To ensure
transparency, the reports were also posted on the Company website and the Philippine Stock Exchange
Edge Portal.
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Opportunities and Management Approach Stakeholders Affected

Vistamalls retained the business process outsourcing | Employees, Community, Suppliers,
(BPO) tenants in 2023, as Google renewed their Investors, Government, Customers
contracts for three years. Community-based
commercial centers and BPO office spaces provided
the Company stable revenues despite the health crisis.
This opened an opportunity for Vistamalls to
strengthen its leasing business that caters to
community-based malls and BPO offices or other
similar uses. Consumer behavior studies will be
continually practiced to satisfy the preferences of the
target customers.

Vistamalls is committed to performing sound
financial management and discipline for its
operational controls, policies, and procedures. It will
continue to compete through project concept, quality,
affordability, and location.

As the real estate market becomes increasingly
competitive, Vistamalls remains committed to its
organic growth strategy and endeavors to expand into
new geographic markets and retain its synergistic
relationships with the Villar Group.

Climate related risks and opportunities®

Governance

Disclose the organization’s governance around climate related risks and opportunities

The Board identifies and manages all risks and opportunities,

a) Describe the board’s oversight including physical risks related to climate, which are handled by
of climate-related risks and the Board Risk Oversight Committee. The Committee based its
opportunities decisions on recommendations contingent to update policies and

related guidance of the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM).

The Chief Risk Officer (CRO) oversees the ERM process with
the following responsibilities:

. Adopted from the Recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures. The TCFD Recommendations
apply to non-financial companies and financial-sector organizations, including banks, insurance companies, asset managers and
asset owners
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(i) supervise all phases of the ERM process and its
documentation. This includes its development,
implementation, maintenance, and continuous
improvement.

(ii) communicate the top risks and the status of
implementation of risk management strategies and
action plans to the Board Risk Oversight
Committee;

(ili)  collaborate with the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
in updating and making recommendations to the
Board Risk Oversight Committee;

(iv)  suggest ERM policies and related guidance, as
needed; and

W) provide insight on the following:

e Risk management processes are performing
as intended.

e Risk measures reported are continuously
reviewed by risk owners for effectiveness;
and

e Establish risk policies and procedures are
being complied with.

The CRO’s office is given authority, stature, resources, and
support from all departments to fulfill assigned tasks

b) Describe management’s role
in assessing and managing
climate- related risks and
opportunities

Strategy

Management assists in the implementation of the Company’s
vision, mission, strategic objectives, policies, and procedures as
set by the Board. It is their responsibility to monitor, evaluate,
and analyze the operations of the business and report the findings
and risks to the Board. Management is also authorized to make
sound business assessments and formulate action plans to be
approved by the Board.

Disclose the actual and potential impacts'® of climate-related risks and opportunities on the

organization’s businesses, strategy, and financial planning where such information is material

a) Describe the climate-related
risks and opportunities the
organization has identified over

The Company has studied the acute physical (e.g., typhoons,
floods) and chronic physical (e.g., increase in outside
temperatures) risks for its malls and BPO leasing operations as
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the short, medium, and long part of its operational, financial, and reputational risks on a

term short, medium, and long-term perspectives.

b) Describe the impact of Vistamalls believes that such risks may cause temporary
climate-related risks and disruptions of its operations, specifically:

opportunities on the
organization’s businesses,
strategy, and financial
planning

e Short-term risks include floods and typhoons that can
cause power interruptions. If there are cracks in
buildings, leaks may occur inside the malls especially
during the heavy downpour. There may also be less
manpower in construction sites brought on by
unfavorable weather conditions, which in turn can delay
project schedules.

e Medium-term risks include high ambient temperature
that may damage the mall equipment, leading to higher
energy consumption and low volume of foot traffic. As
a result, the Company may report a lower income while
dealing with repairs costs for the different equipment.

e Long-term risks include the worsening climate change
influence that may bring about higher consumption of
energy such as air conditioning during hot weather
conditions and for using generators in times of power
interruptions during typhoons.

c) Describe the resilience of The Company had made it an internal standard operating
the organization’s strategy, procedure to conduct a thorough, technical environment
taking into consideration scanning as part of its due diligence process of all of its land
different climate- related acquisitions and their adjacent areas, as well as malls and office
scenarios including a 2°C establishments in the face of risks posed by climate-related
or lower scenario situations such as the 2°C or lower scenario in its ERM.

The Company regularly reviewed and updated its Business
Continuity Plan (BCP) in keeping with new developments that
resulted from its due diligence studies. This included any
adjustment to allocated budgets reserved for emergencies and
other crisis situations as well as regular training as part of the
upkeep of different teams tasked to facilitate repairs,
maintenance, and business operations for all possible scenarios.

Risk Management

Disclose how the organization identifies, assesses, and manages climate-related risks
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maintains a pool of contractors that are near or within the vicinity of
Vistamalls in case of issues or challenges from the regular suppliers
with whom they were initially partnered.

Supporting local suppliers and the community is imperative for
Vista Malls, as it is built on a strong commitment to share social
progress, environmental stewardship, and business success that is
anchored on a balanced development model and is respectful of the
environment and the communities where it operates.

In 2023, there is continuous improvement of the online procurement
system where all transactions such as biddings, contract reviews,
billing processing, and supply requests can be performed. Online
billing countering was also launched in 2023 and is now being used
for supply billing countering. The system continuously helped ease
the acceptance of requirements and the coordination between the
Company and the suppliers. Additionally, Vistamalls conducts
constant research for benchmarking and to know the industry trends
as part of performing good procurement practices.

Governance

Anti- Corruption

Training on Anti-corruption Policies and Procedures

Disclosure
Percentage of employees to whom the organization’s 100 100 100
anti-corruption policies and procedures have been
communicated to
Percentage of business partners to whom the 100 100 100

organization’s anti-corruption policies and procedures
have been communicated to

Percentage of directors and management that have 100 100 100
received anti- corruption training
Percentage of employees that have received anti- 100 100 100

corruption training
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Incidents of Corruption

Disclosure 2023 2022 2021
Number of incidents in which directors were removed or 0 0 0
disciplined for corruption
Number of incidents in which employees were dismissed 0 0 0
or disciplined for corruption
Number of incidents when contracts with business 0 0 0
partners were terminated due to incidents of corruption

Impact and Management Approach Stakeholders Affected

Vistamalls believes that good governance includes good | Employees, Suppliers, Directors and

management of fraud and corruption incidents. The | Management, Government Regulators
following policies comply with the principles and practices
set out by the Company's Manual on Corporate Governance.

All employees, directors, and members of management are
oriented, and copies of the Company's whistleblowing policy
and anti-corruption policies are provided. These regulations
apply rigorously to everyone. To reinforce these principles
during the epidemic, Vistamalls conducted online meetings
and discussions and utilized all available channels, including
email, social media, and virtual meetings, to disseminate
diverse rules throughout the organization. All workers
receive clear instructions on procedures, such as prohibitions
on accepting gifts and guidance on preventing conflicts of
interest.

The Company ensures that discussions on the Anti-
Corruption Policies are included in the on-the-job orientation
and annual corporate values sessions. Before being granted
projects and contracts, suppliers and contractors undergo a
standard accreditation process, which includes screening for
compliance with relevant regulations based on their
experiences and track record. This process ensures that the
Company only partners with third parties who have ethical
business conduct. The policies are also available on the
Company's website for all stakeholders to access.

As a result, all employees, directors, management, and
business partners receive training and communication on the
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ENVIRONMENT DISCLOSURES

Energy and Emissions

Energy consumption within the organization

Disclosure

I Gasoline

"EVIA L 91 75 20
Starmall EDSA Shaw L 2,056.05 1,085.41 3,648.68
Starmall EDSA Shaw kg 98,951.99 100,042 62,955.61
EVIA kg 226,971.87 209,094.11 96,617
NOMO = 56,628.86 32,097.09 9,387.48
WCC kg 39,706.69 56,701.61 38,281.50
Vista Mall Taguig kg 161,419.72 161,419.72 109,950.15
Vista Mall Bataan kg 105,535.80 13,839.44 :
=
Vehicles i e S AT R R el T :
- T T L
Vista Mall Bataan L 10,657.67 10,714 6,573.96
Starmall EDSA Shaw L - 41,000 44231
g el G
NOMO il T 4,000 4,010 9,189.80
Starmall EDSA Shaw L 1,418.85 3,000 1,608
EVIA L 981 LI 476
Vista Mall Bataan L 26,600 24,410 6,552
Vista Mall Taguig L 936 936 936
WCC I 14,087 26,102 29,500

[ Electricity '

[ NOMO MWh 8231.91 7,973.38 5,953.56
Starmall EDSA Shaw MWh 9,583.80 8,602.26 6,735.82
EVIA MWh 20,252.54 19,313.9 14,459.39
Vista Mall Bataan MWh 7,112.94 7,355.81 9,396.11
Vista Mall Taguig MWh 12,577.15 11,030.14 8,081.08
WCC MWh 19,808.07 18,742.43 15,418.69




Energy Intensity
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Disclosure Units 2023 2022 2021
' LPG
_
Electnczty
WCC kWh/sq.m 166.67 157.70 129.74
kWh/mwh 1,000 1,000 -

EVIA

NOMO " L/hours 12000] 22835 :
VistaMall Bataan L/cu.m 1,000 1,000 -
e = ¥ = s e B

VistaMall Bataan L/cum 1,000 1,000 | :

Reduction’ of energy consumption

Disclosure
' Gasohne

" Starmall EDSA Shaw

kg & 090.01 (37,086.39) -
EVIA kg 17,877.76 (112,477.11) 16,790
NOMO m’ (24,531.77) (22,709.61) (3,745.00)
wCC kg 16,994.92 (18,420.11) 5,287.75
Vista Mall Taguig kg 0 (51,469.47) (6,631.15)

EVIA T 7322047 (1,310.00) | 4,040
Vista Mall Bataan L 3,379.80 @,140.09) 713
Starmall EDSA Shaw L : (40,557.7) 1,248
T _ e T
] o T e
Starmall EDSA Shaw L 1,581.15 (1,392) @30)
EVIA L (653) (635) 23,524

4Ncgativc values mean an increased consumption compared to previous year’s consumption.
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Greenhouse Gases’

Disclosure

2023

[Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions(in tonnes COZe) Gasoline

Vista Mall Bataan L (13,1400) (17,858) 21,448
Vista Mall Taguig L 3,750 1,970 969

" Electricity

& 5 (258.53) (2,019.82) (496)
Starmall EDSA Shaw MWh (981.54) 1,866.44 84
EVIA MWh 1873.74 (4,854.51) (1,105)
Vista Mall Bataan MWh (9,416.96) 2,040.3 807
Vista Mall Taguig KWh (1,547.01) (2,949.06) (@52.17)
wCC KWh (1,065.54) (3,323.74) 3,841.72

Air Emissions

EVIA
Starmall EDSA Shaw
"Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions (in tonnes CO2e) LPG
i l SA Shaw |
EVIA 695.87 641.067 296.22
NOMO 318.07 180.28 52.73
wCC 121.74 173.84 117.37
Vista Mall Taguig 494.09 494.90 337.17
Vista Mall Bataan 4230 42.43 !
Dire DpE 0 N ton ) 3
Vehicles
EVIA 1.23
Vista Mall Bataan 28.52 28.67 17.60
Starmall EDSA Shaw s 109.74 1.18
[ e e ST s Ot ST e

5 Restated for comparability



VISTAMALLS, INC. SEC ANNEX 2023

NOMO 10.05 10.07

23.09
Starmall EDSA Shaw 3.56 7.54 4.04
EVIA 2.46 2.79 1.20
Vista Mall Bataan 66.83 61.33 16.46
Vista Mall Taguig 2.35 236 2.35
wcCC 35.39 - -

I Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions (in tonnes CO2e) Electricity®
NOMO 5,862.77 5,678.65 4,240.13
Starmall EDSA Shaw 6,825.58 6,126.53 4,797.25
EVIA 14,423.86 13,755.37 10,297.98
Vista Mall Bataan 5,065.84 5,238.81 6,691.91
Vista Mall Taguig 8,957.45 7,855.68 5,755.36
wCC 14,107.32 13,348.37 10,981.19

' Scope 3 GHG emissions N/A N/A N/A
_ (intons CO2e)
"Emission of ozone-depleting | N/A N/A N/A
substances (ODS)

~ Nitrogen Oxides (NOXx), N/A N/A N/A
' Ifur Oxides (SOx), and
ther Significant Air Emissions N/A N/A N/A

Air Pollutants

Impact Stakeholders Affected

Malls and commercial spaces consume energy for their cooling | Employees, Tenants,
system, chiller plant operation, lighting, generator set operations, | Customers

and tenants’ use. As part of the Company’s response to protect its
employees, shuttle services are provided during site visits which
are the source of diesel consumption in 2022.

Management Approach to Impacts

Vistamalls provides training to its operations staff on energy management measures which include the
proper maintenance and operation of diesel generator sets. Evia's Genset is a standby power only. As per
DENR-EMB M(C2022-003, only genset that runs at three hours per day or 200 running hours annually

® Emission Factor Used: DOE 2015-2017 National Grid Emission Factor (NGEF)
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must perform emission tests.

Energy saving measures are being adopted. These include measures such as:

e upgrading lighting fixtures from CFL/fluorescent lightings to LED bulbs. As of 2023, 95% have
been converted into LED lights;
e scheduling the switching of lights, air conditioning units, elevators, and escalators;

e daily temperature monitoring, wherein low temperatures necessitate turning off equipment. The
24-degree Celsius ambient temperature is maintained. ACUs are used during non-peak hours;
the use of the automatic switches for pumps and motors;

maximize the existing load capacity of transformers to cater activities;
diesel consumption is monitored through the purchase orders for servicing employees;
proper ventilation is provided to ensure normal working conditions for equipment;

regular preventive maintenance measures of equipment. Generator sets are scheduled
quarterly for PMS and are undergo change oil annually;
e ongoing replacement and upgrade of old electrical/mechanical equipment to prevent
interruption due to equipment failures; and
e cleaning of exhaust, filters and facilities are scheduled to improve equipment
performance and efficiency.
Regular inspection of all facilities and equipment is conducted to assess lighting and equipment
usage in malls and to ensure that all systems are in tip-top condition to avoid sudden breakdowns
and lessen the use of emergency power supply.

Stakeholders Affected

Vistamalls sees the risk presented by power interruptions that may Employees, Tenants, Customers
be caused by natural or man- made events.

All malls have building administrators that track the usage of
energy. They maintain data on the energy use trends of various
facilities and equipment. The data serves as the main reference in
budgeting energy benchmarks per month and in developing
measures to ensure that the amount of consumption does not go
beyond the budgeted energy consumption. Each month, the
building administrators compare the actual kWh consumption
versus the budgeted kWh consumption for the common area to
avoid excessive use of energy.

When the power usage is increasing in some areas, the building
administrators discuss with technicians and security personnel on
how to monitor the strategic switching off of electrical equipment
like elevators, lights, and aircons as necessary. The building
administrators are also trained to respond in emergency cases such
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as power interruptions.

Opportunities and Management Approach Stakeholders Affected

Vistamalls continuously seeks for feasible renewable energy | Employees, Tenants, Customers
sources for its malls and BPO spaces. In NOMO, the mall has been
installed with 832 solar panels which will produce 370KW of DC
power and output of 300KW with an annual production of 505.1
MWhr additional power. In early 2023, the solar panels operated
and were turned over to the NOMO management.

In EVIA, 60% of the open parking areas are installed with solar
power lights. Actual savings for this reported in 2023 onwards.

Overall, Vistamalls continuously improves its energy
management to ensure efficiency of operations while providing a
comfortable shopping experience for the customers.

Water

Water consumption within the organization

Disclosure

| Water withdrawal (in m°)

NOMO 58,787 T 53,494 28,061 |
Starmall EDSA Shaw 82,096 58,098 54,490
EVIA 168,170 173,588 117,259
Vista Mall Bataan 128,058 157,180 18,479
WCC 96,520 84,955 58,046
Vista Mall Taguig 80,577 91,890 60,050
EVIA 100% 99.76% -
NOMO 109% 99% .
WCC 81% 71% -
- Water consumption (in m’ |
NOMO | 32,442 7,627
Starmall EDSA Shaw 56,323 63,003 5,989
EVIA 168,506 174,013 83,370
Vista Mall Bataan 11,642 79,431 3,697
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Vistamalls aims to reduce the water needed to run the facilities by a minimum of 20% by the end of 2023.
As part of this goal, the Company plans to recycle wastewater to operate the cooling towers. It is also the
initiative of Vistamalls to utilize water from the cooling tower to be used for perimeter cleaning.

One of the malls targets to reuse treated water from the STPs as an alternative source to supply water closets
and urinals. This initiative expects to reuse 50% of water from the STP and will take off in 2023. Another
mall also targets to reduce the mall sharing for water consumption vs tenant consumption to less than 50%

Aside from recycling, the property management teams maintain the piping system to discharge only
in designated discharge points. They secure all hazardous waste properly. Monitoring of cistern tanks
and sewage treatment plants are conducted weekly and they are cleaned annually.

Materials used by the organization

Disclosure
| Renewable Materials used
wood pcs 3 3
PVC pipe 35 35
NOMO Paper, cartons, kg 840 7000
plastics
Vista Mall Taguig Paper ke 350 reams 40
Plywood pcs 208 -
wCC Bond paper, reams 332 u
T Recycled input materials used
L_ ST Gypsum board, pcs 50 65
Metal Furring,
Plywood
NOMO Paper, cartons, kg 840 7000
plastics
VistaMalls Bataan Pet bottles pes 1 300

Vista Mall Taguig

Paper

kg

50

40

80

EVIA Gypsum board 80
Metal Furring % 85 90
Plyboard 75 75
NOMO Paper,cartons, 100 100
plastics
Vista Mall Taguig Paper 50 50
[ Reclaimed products and their packaging materials N/A N/A
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Ecosystems and biodiversity (whether in upland/watershed or
coastal/marine)

Vistamalls has no sites that significantly impact lands with high biodiversity value or located in or near
protected areas. As a subsidiary of Vista Land, the Company employs the same procedures in land acquisition
as its parent company. Engineering and environmental assessments are conducted to determine if the land is
suitable for construction. The land must be topographically amenable to commercial development.

Other factors include:
e the general economic condition of the environment surrounding the property;

e suitable land must be located near areas with sufficient demand or that the

anticipated demand can justify any development;
o the site’s accessibility from nearby roads and major thoroughfares;

e the availability of utility infrastructure, such as electric transmission facilities, telephone lines and
water systems; and
e the overall competitive landscape and the neighboring environment and amenities.

Biodiversity in the company’s operations
At Vistamalls’ EVIA Lifestyle Center, it has become a daily exercise in support of biodiversity by conducting
the following activities such as:

Proper segregation and waste disposal

Recycling of materials like (wood, paper, and metals)

Comply to Environmental standards for waste-water and air cleanliness

Propagation and gardening activities

Conduct Preventive maintenance on all equipment to ensure effectiveness and efficiency.
Uses recycled water to use in landscaping at Building expansion area

Proper disposal of construction debris to eliminate land pollution

Recycling of construction materials

The Company also supports programs such as the Villar Foundation (formerly known as Villar SIPAG) that
champion biodiversity. Used plastics are donated in support of their plastics recycling program. The
Company also produces and provides fertilizer to the foundation in support of their campaign against food

waste.
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Waste
Solid Waste
2023 2022
Disclosure
~ Reusable
Mall Bataan : Boxes, Plastic,
Used tarps
_ Recyclable
"NOMO Paper, cartons, | - 840
plastic
Starmall EDSA Paper, plastics, MT 11,875 kg 350 130
Shaw metal, aluminum
EVIA Plastic kg 2,867 2,606 50
Paper & Cartons kg 1,688 8,311 No data
Glass bottle kg 2,468 2,146
Aluminum kg 189 272
Metal kg 218 264
Others Pet Bottle kg 1,050 921
Vista Mall Bataan Paper kg 2,016 - 2,146
Cans kg/ 3 3 .
month
Plastic Gallons kg 36.10 39.24 32.94
Scratch paper kg 1 per |1 per quarter 7.3
quarter
Vista Mall Taguig Paper kg 20- 12 10
Plastic kg 15 7 7
WCC Solid waste cu.m 1,984 1,776 1,248
Septic Tank
- Composted =
“NOMO Kitchen waste ke 149,000 108,000,
Dry waste ke $16,000 1,200 :
Assorted waste MT 150.9 0.96
EVIA Food Waste kg 6,732 5,610 11,030
Starmall EDSA Shaw | Food waste kg 1,050 - -

| Residuals/Landfilled
Starmall EDSA Shaw

Paper 200,000 200,000
Paper kg 9,145 10,437 550
Plastics kg 2,867 3,493 275

EVIA
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Food waste kg 6,732 133,000 16,970
Vista Mall Bataan Assorted waste kg 75 60 945
Vista Mall Taguig Assorted waste tons 583 224
wcCC Solid waste cu.m. 2,424 A S

Hazardous Waste

Disclosure Units

Totalwelght of _hazardous waste generated

Bulbs, Batteries - pcs No data No data
NOMO Used Ol L available available 8064
600
Tissue Papers kg
Starmall EDSA Bulbs, batteries, MT 0.321 0.0825 0.061
Shaw grease sludge
EVIA Bulbs pes 1,090 985 685
Genset 12 17 16
Batteries pes
Bulbs Pcs, kg 1,000 1127 1125
Vista Mall Bataan [ {j5.4 0il gal 16 76 2728
Face masks kg 1 1 1
WCC Bulbs, Used Genset 4.55 2.79 1.19
0il, Cooking Oil, MT
Batteries
Vista Mall Taguig | Bulb kg 10 4 3
Battery kg 1 0.2 0.2
NOMO Not specified kg 0
Grease slude ' oo Sade %0
Starmall EDSA Bulbs pes 300
Shaw Genset Batteries pcs 18
EVIA Not specified pes 2.5
Vista Mall Not specified kg 118 118 387
Bataan

"In kilograms
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Impact Stakeholders Affected

Events, seasonal decorations, increased number of tenants, higher foot Employees, Tenants, Community,
traffic, and higher car volume are the identified inputs that lead to more Contractors, Service providers,
waste generation in Vistamalls during the year. Customers, Government regulators,
Farmers

Management Approach to Impacts

Vistamalls shared the responsibility of practicing effective waste management with its tenants and service
providers in the belief that the shared roles made all key stakeholders accountable in ensuring overall efficient
operations while reducing disposal costs through recycling.

Segregation at the source is encouraged for all the mall and BPO tenants. Each segregated waste is hauled by
a waste disposal contractor to the proper facilities. Tenants are expected to strictly follow the trash bag color
coding to prevent mixing of wastes.

Recyclable wastes, such as cartons, papers, and tarpaulins, are sent to Materials Recovery Facilities (MRFs),
which are then sorted out and sent to buyers (e.g., junk and scrap buyers). All tenants are mandated to avoid
using single-use plastics in packaging purchases in compliance with the local ordinances banning the use of
such plastics.

Reusable wastes are diverted as materials for other projects. For instance, plastic gallons are reused as plant
boxes, printing documents on scratch papers, old cartons as storage boxes for other smaller items, among others.

Some of the food wastes from the malls are composted. The wastes are transported to composting facilities of
the Villar Foundation which would be processed as fertilizers that will be used by farmer-beneficiaries.

Vistamalls also ensures that all hazardous wastes are properly identified, characterized, stored, and transported,
according to government regulations. To track the waste that was collected by a third- party hauler, the building
admins ask for a certificate for hazardous waste disposal. There are deployed officers who track the activities
of any third-party contractors and report them to the administration.

Risks Stakeholders Affected
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The improper disposal of materials and other resources increases Employees, Tenants, Community,
waste generation which pollutes the environment. The risk increases Contractors, Service providers,
with the hybrid way of working in 2023 that saw an increased foot Customers, Government

traffic in the malls and the once vacated BPO spaces seeing employees regulators

on site.

Vistamalls practices that having an effective solid waste management
system also promotes an environment that is free from pests and
unsanitary areas that may cause illnesses. Additionally, Solid Waste
Management promotes compliance with the regulations and is a plus
factor for incoming tenants.

To track progress, identify and address gaps in its waste management
process, Vistamalls regularly monitors its collected waste volume via
manual tracking and visual confirmation while referencing the hauling
data and estimations based on garbage truck capacity. This effort is
vetted by haulers’ own reports on their monthly solid waste collection.

The Company’s waste management policy is regularly communicated
to the employees, tenants, and service providers through announcements
of house rules, memos, signages on trash bins, emails, and letters.

To monitor the compliance of all parties, officers are deployed to
conduct surprise inspections and impose penalties and violation tickets
to those parties who are non-compliant.
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Regular communication on company policies and guidelines is implemented to sustain this commitment.
Among these policies and guidelines are the ban of single-use plastics, construction/fit out guidelines
wherein the specification of lighting fixtures needs to be uniform with the building requirements, and the
switching off of all facilities and equipment after small hours.

Opportunities and Management Approach Stakeholders Affected

Vistamalls will continue to promote, implement, | Employees, Tenants, Community, Contractors,
monitor, and invest in environmentally friendly Service providers, Customers, Government
practices to manage energy, water, and waste within regulators

the organization.




VISTAMALLS, INC. SEC ANNEX 2023

SOCIAL DISCLOSURES

Employee Management

Employee Hiring and Benefit
Employee Data 2023 2022 2021
Total number of employees 259 243 254
Number of female employees 149 134 142
Number of male employees 110 109 112
Attrition rate® 3.19% -14% 7%
Ratio of lowest paid employee against 1:1 1:1 1:1
minimum wage

Employee Benefits

!

SS Yes 49 3.2 8.9 11.2
PhilHealth Yes 4.5 43 5.03 3.76
Pag-IBIG Yes 1.1 1.6 2.23 0.15
IParental leaves Yes 3.2 1.6 3.35 3.76
'Vacation leaves Yes 65 44.5 55.8 34.5
Sick leaves Yes 26.4 14 18.9 17.2
[Medical Benefits
(aside from Yes 354 28.0 225 20.6
PhilHealth)

Housing assistance
asde o D Yes 100 100 100 100
IBIG)

8 Attrition rate = (no. of new hires — no. of turnover)/ (average of total no, of employees of previous year and total no. of employees of
current year)
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Safety policies and any other additional measures are communicated to employees through email
blasts and memorandums posted on the bulletin board of offices, as well as discussions during staff
meetings and social media platforms.

There is a formal joint management-worker health and safety committee. Its responsibility is to ensure
proper communication and coordination of safe work procedures and policies between workers and
employers. The committee is authorized to make decisions in terms of health and safety. Once every
three months, the members meet.

The Villar Group gives priority to actions that will safeguard the health and safety of its workforce
in 2023.

Work-related hazards that include fires or explosions, equipment malfunction, trips & slips, and
work-related stress are always considered by the Company to be safety risks. Additionally, external
events such as natural disasters may also significantly affect the Company’s operations.

Management Approach to Risks

Vistamalls health and safety committee conducts risk assessments to identify occupational safety
hazards and risks.

Additional safety measures have been implemented for COVID-19 prevention. Particularly,
employees are required to answer a health survey form daily to ensure they do not experience any
symptoms before reporting to the office. Temperature checks, hand sanitizers, and foot baths are also
placed at the office entrances. In addition, the Company rearranged offices to consider physical
distancing.

The Company presents the minutes of the meeting of the OSH committee to an external inspector
from the Department of Labor and Employment to check for completeness and correctness. These
are used to determine appropriate ways to eliminate the hazard or control the risk when the Company
cannot eliminate the hazard. Aside from signages, the committee conducts collaborative meetings to
review existing policies on risk reduction.

Employees are encouraged to relay any work-related hazards to their assigned safety officer or the
Human Resources Department (HRD). Work-related incidents are investigated through witness
testimonies and CCTV footage, if available. The Company also reviews work-related incident reports
and determines the severity of these incidents to develop preventive actions. The senior management
officer determines the severity of the situation and instructs the Human Resources Department to
coordinate the order with the division head or officer-in-charge of the affected area/s.

The Company's occupational health services include pre-employment assessment and employee
wellness. In addition, Vistamalls have clinics with an Emergency Response Team present to provide
employees and customers with any emergent health crisis. Employees can have teleconsultations
through the Company's accredited HMO provider. In addition, employees can access it through the
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agreements with its employees and none of the employees belong to a union.

The Company recognizes the risks of having an unhealthy work environment due to non- compliance
with labor laws and human rights. These may result in fines and sanctions imposed by the
government. Moreover, strikes, work stoppages, work slowdowns, grievances, complaints or claims
of unfair practices or other deterioration in the Company’s employee relations may negatively
impact employees’ productivity and the Company’s reputation.

Vistamalls has high regard for its human resources and in turn, expects its workforce to deliver based
on agreed targets as aligned to the mission of the organization. The Company facilitates company-
sponsored activities and performs annual performance reviews to keep its employees informed and
to monitor their progress.

Various platforms such as surveys, focus-group discussions, regular staff meetings, and coordination
meetings are made available to encourage employees’ participation. Open forum is seen as an
opportunity for management to receive suggestions and other feedback from employees and vice
versa. Regular values sessions are also conducted per department wherein Company values are
reiterated and employees communicate their concerns.

The Human Resources Department (HRD) is tasked to welcome, accommodate, and address the
concerns of the employees. Any complaints received pertaining to discrimination will be dealt with
promptly and with fairness.

The HRD will investigate based on the incident report, testimony of the witnesses, and other
evidence related to the commission of the offense. Employees are protected by the Whistle Blowing
Policy so they can freely communicate their concerns without fear of retaliation. Employees are also
empowered with direct access to an independent member of the Board or a unit created to handle
whistleblowing concerns.

All employees are assured that their concerns are dealt with confidentiality and professionalism. The
Company investigates the reported incident. Once vetted, the management and/or HRD will conduct
the appropriate disciplinary action and will closely monitor the agreed resolution, if needed. This
due process is based on the Company’s Employee Code of Conduct and Discipline.

The policy states specific disciplinary actions towards offenses of discrimination, equivalent to
separation. Article A Section 1-7 of the Company’s Code of Conduct and Discipline (Offenses
Against Person) states that any infraction of the Company rules and regulations shall give rise to
appropriate disciplinary action that can range from a Written Warning, Suspension, or Dismissal.
This is given after due process. The policy also noted that the Company does not encourage any act
of insult, disrespect, or rudeness of employees.
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[ previous and existing contracts/projects
° manpower

® offices

@ coverage of service

The prospective suppliers’ environmental and social impacts are checked and evaluated based on
certifications and required permits that were secured for their previous and existing projects. The
suppliers are also tested for their ethical business practice and their capacity to adhere to the
Philippine laws.

Risks and Management Approach

Vistamalls’ supply chain faces various risks, such as: price fluctuations of materials (e.g., steel,
cement, and other raw materials for construction), changing regulations, and labor shortages.

To mitigate risks of labor shortages, Vistamalls employs the services of local contractors in its
various host communities. This back up plan also serves to strengthen ties with the local
neighborhoods.

The in-house Purchasing Group is responsible for searching, selecting and accrediting suppliers.
The group negotiates lock-in prices for an agreed period of time and manages the level of materials
inventory. Materials are ordered by bulk to get the maximum discounted price for common
requirements.

Online meeting platforms are used to connect with suppliers for negotiations and other transactions.
Suppliers are asked to submit pictures of their offices for the Company to review and assess while
actual visits are limited. Through constant research and foreign travels for benchmarking; Suppliers
undergo a thorough accreditation process that includes background investigation, submission of
complete and updated financial documents and the necessary government permits and certifications,
company and plant visits, and other pertinent inquiries.

For suppliers who were identified as non-compliant, Vistamalls address such issues by:

° providing timelines for those who failed to meet the quality and specifications of the
Company. If the timeline is still not followed, Vistamalls has the option to cancel the
contracts.

° issuances of letters of delay that indicate the grace period for suppliers to resolve the issue.

If the grace period has passed and the issue is still not resolved, the
Companies will impose penalties as stipulated in the contracts.

Opportunities and Management Approach

The Villar Group’s procurement teams are wont to synergize as good business practice. This win-
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win move ensures a better negotiation edge of the collective block for key goods and services.

Vistamalls will continuously provide the necessary training and development opportunities for
employees to improve their skills as procurement professionals.

Relationship with Community

Significant Impacts on Local Communities

Operations with significant impacts Breastfeeding stations
on local communities

Location All malls
Vulnerable groups'! (if applicable) Women, mothers

Does the particular operation have No
impacts on indigenous people?

Collective or individual rights that have Right to have a designated breastfeeding area for
been identified that or particular concern  QEUEHTE TSN

for the

community

Mitigating measures or Dialogue with the communities on their needs
enhancement measures

Operations with significant impacts Terminal/Transport Hubs
on local communities

Location Naga

Vulnerable groups (if applicable) Children, youth, and elderly

Does the particular operation have No

impacts on indigenous people?

Collective or individual rights that have Right to have the highest standard of living by
LI R ENTTCL BB § ERGUTETE o 8l providing access to transportation

for the

community

Mitigating measures or Traffic management on terminals
enhancement measures

L Vulnerable sectors include, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women, refugees, migrants, internally displaced persons, people
living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents, and the poor or the base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E)
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Operations with significant impacts Designated access to ramps, elevators, comfort rooms
on local communities for PWD, waived parking fees and government
mandated benefits for Senior Citizens

Location All malls

Vulnerable groups (if applicable) PWD, Senior Citizens

Does the particular operation have No
impacts on indigenous people?

Collective or individual rights that have Right to have the highest standard of living by
LSBT LT RO RIS LGN ET ol providing access to goods and other necessities
for the

community

Mitigating measures or Ensure cleanliness, orderliness and safety
enhancement measures

Operations with significant impacts Eucharistic celebrations
on local communities

Location Taguig, Malolos, Tanza, Dasma, EDSA-Shaw, Naga

Vulnerable groups (if applicable) Children, youth, and elderly

Does the particular operation have No

impacts on indigenous people?

Collective or individual rights that have Right to have access for local eucharistic gatherings
been identified that or particular concern

for the

community

Mitigating measures or Crowd control and accurate scheduling
enhancement measures

Operations with significant impacts Free venue for school events
on local communities

Location Sta. Rosa

Vulnerable groups (if applicable) Children, youth

Does the particular operation have No
impacts on indigenous people?

Collective or individual rights that have Right to have access for local venues
been identified that or particular concern

for the

community

Mitigating measures or Crowd control and accurate scheduling
_ enhancement measures
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Vista Mall Taguig Yes 4.4 44 .
Worldwide Corporate N/A N/A N/A N/A
Center

Vistamalls’ strategic locations have affirmed its reputation as a reliable transport hub for commuters.
Public transportation includes point-to-point buses, public buses, jeepneys, and taxis.

Operating in an industry easily influenced by a fickle and demanding market, the Company adopted
several approaches to gather inputs from customers on their perceptions and satisfaction levels vis-a-
vis the malls’ overall appearance, operations, cleanliness, activity areas and quality of partner-
establishments. One such resource tapped in 2023 is a year-long weekly survey through Google
reviews. The Google results were supplemented by a quarterly data collection from an online panel
survey which aimed to monitor incidence checks on retail establishments at a brand level. Both digital
options were sustained given their resource-saving benefits and faster data collection versus the pre-
pandemic face to face interviews Vistamalls used to rely on.

Management Approach to Impacts

Prompted by its latest customer survey results for a wider and later dining and shopping selection,
Vistamalls sustained its efforts to upgrade the tenant mix by continuously bringing together both
affiliate and non-affiliate brands in mall spaces while maintaining its standard of premium shopping
facilities and services.

Vistamalls affiliates such as AllDay supermarket and AllHome improvement store and other AVG
brands have launched online shops where customers can purchase their desired items and have them
delivered to their doorsteps. The very first self-checkout counters in one of our AllDay supermarkets,
which was also recognized as the very first of its own in the Philippines.

Vistamalls’ vision of premium shopping experience is embodied in the way it renovated its malls,
purposely accenting architectural structures and new tenants blending well with the usual AllValue
affiliates. Mindful of the rise of pet ownership spurred by pandemic lockdowns in recent years, the
Company planned more al fresco dining spaces to attract this growing niche market. Vistamalls
continued to bring in new retail concepts based on international retail trends to ensure local shoppers
are updated on the latest and best products and services.

Vistamalls also sustained its personalized and convenient services through its personal shoppers,
curbside pick-up service, and accommodating various delivery partners. The management continues
to strive hard to provide excellent customer service by making the shopper's experience more
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No. of complaints addressed 0 0 0
No. of customers, users, and account holders 0 0 0
whose information is used for secondary

purposes

Data Sec 'H."i;‘_]'

Disclosure

No. of data breaches, including leaks, 0 0 0
thefts and losses of data

Impacts and Management Approach

In 2023, Vistamalls had no reported cases or complaints regarding customer privacy. Moreover, there
were no data breaches reported in the same year.

Its processes are in line with the Data Privacy Act. In addition, its Data Privacy Officers regularly
attend training and seminars accredited and organized by the National Privacy Commission.

In Vistamalls, Privacy Impact Assessments for all systems are completed and updated yearly. Results
from these assessments are then submitted to management for their reference.

Simultaneously, the IT group has a standard procedure for all suppliers to ensure they follow the
privacy policies when working on projects.

There is an existing Privacy Manual wherein the most salient points are then disseminated to officers,
employees, third-party providers, and professional advisors of Vista Land and Lifescapes—the parent
company, through regular offline and online briefings.

Changes, recommendations, and updates concerning data privacy legislation, rules, regulations, and
policies regarding privacy are being monitored by DPO and COPs.

Visit https://www.vistamalls.com.ph/privacy-policy to know more about the Company's privacy
policy.

More than just a statement, historical data shows that data security has always been a priority issue in
Vistamalls.

Potential risks to data security include but are not limited to data breaches, leaks, thefts,
and losses of data.

Digitally translated services, marketing, and other transactions require customers to share their
personal information, thus putting the responsibility on Vistamalls to strengthen their customer
privacy measures to control any incident or leaks of customer information.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside of profit or loss is recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction cither in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are offset if a Icgally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
asscts against current tax liabilitics and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Parent Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past cvent, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a rcliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Parent Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. Provisions are
reviewed at cach financial reporting datc and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Events After the Financial R ing Date

Post year-cnd events that provide additional information about the Parent Company’s position at the
financial reparting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the parent company financial statements,
Any post year-cnd events that are not adjusting cvents are disclosed in the parent company financial
statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of accompanying parent company financial statements in compliance with PFRS
requircs management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
parcnt company financial statements and accompanying notes. The estimates and assumptions used
in the parent company financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facls
and circumstances as at the date of the parent company financial statements. Actual results could
differ from such estimates.

Judgments and cstimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Judgments
In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,

apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the parent company financial statements:

Evaluation of impairment of financial asset

Under PFRS 9, the Parent Company reviews its financial assets portfolio to asset impairment at least
on an annual basis. In determining whether ECL should be recognized in the statement of
comprchensive income, the Parent Company makes judgements as to whether there is any obscrvable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the cstimated future cash flows from debts
instruments.

In 2023 and 2022, no ECL were recognized based on the assessment made.
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Amount Recelvable
— Nature of T v [Payable) Termi Candld,
Fayahics P el
latermediats Fareat
Company xad entitien Neslalerest-bearing:
under comman control  #) Advances P79, TH.188 (P30,154599.175)  [lue and demandable Untecured
d) Dividends (227,761,695 =
Nouisterast-benring;
Subsldlary b} Advance (942.479,112) &Ts‘réu,m] Due und demandable Unsecured
T
December 31, 2022
Amounl
Receivable
Nature of Transaction Volene (Payable) Terms Cooditions
Receivabler from reloted parries
4] Advanced Noninterest-besring; Unsecured,
Ulimate Parert Company d) Dividends 3,006,502 | Due and demandable No impairmem
(3.009,802) =
(Forwusd)
Noginteren-beanng,
No stnted dute of Unsecured;
Fntity uader comman control a) Advances 3,009,802} 2, TTE4T,TH Repayment No impainnent
Subsidiary 1) Advances 42947599 19,664,029,252
b) Management fee B035,714 - -
Noninterest-besring: Upicoured;
:!Dﬂd&ul ineome 194,670,464 3m:m£: Mo staied date of repaymeT No m' et
M.Em.m.'m
Payablex o related parties
Intermediate Parent
Company an0d entitiss Nenistcren besnng;
wnder commen control 1) Advances (P&AD,184,359) (P30,)04,616840)  Due andd dabl Ui
o) Divadensls (1594,726,766) i, -
Nori beasi
Sebuiduury 3 Advasces (0503L921) _ (L415002571) Duewddemmdsble  Unsecured
I,‘PJ-G_I 21.“9,4[2

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured, interest free and unless otherwise specified, are
scttled in cash. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Parent Company has not made any provision
for impairment losses relating to amounts owed by related partics. This assessment is undertaken
cach financial year by examining the financial position of the rclated party and the market in which
the rclated party operates.

The significant transactions with related partics follow:

a)

b)

c)

The Parent Company in its regular conduct of business has entered into transactions with
Ultimate Parent Company, subsidiarics and entities under common control (referred to as “other
related partics™) principally consisting reccipts and granting of noninterest bearing advances for
working capital requirements and capital expenditures which are due and demandable except for
its receivable from subsidiary which has no stated date of repayment. The Parent Company’s
policy is to settle its intcrcompany reccivables and payables on a net basis.

Dividends to the ultimate parent company amounting to #3,52 million and #3.01 million was
applicd against receivable from ultimate parent company in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Parent Company charges its subsidiaries fixed management fees for services rendered with
an aggregate amount of #8.04 million for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,

As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, the dividends declared by MAPI in 2023 and 2022

amounting to #252.30 million and #194.68 million, respectively, these are presented under
“Receivable from subsidiary” in the statement of financial position.
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d) Details of dividends declared to stockholders are discussed in Note 11.

In addition, the Parent Company serves as a guarantor for the following borrowings entered into by
its related partics which the Parent Company unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed. No fees
arc charged for these guarantce agreements.

A. Dollar Denominated Bonds

a.

US$220.00 million Notes (Due July 2027)

On May 17, 2021, VLL Intcrnational, Inc. (VII) issued USS170.00 million notes (“Notes™)
with a term of six years from initial drawdown datc. The Notes were used to refinance
existing debt as a result of liability management exercise and excess proceeds were used to
refinance existing debt and for general corporate purposes. As of December 31, 2023 and
2022, outstanding balance of the note amounted to US$172.60 million (9,556.63 million)
and US$173.68 million (B9,683.72 million), respectively.

On June 1, 2021, V11 issued an additional US$50.00 million unsecured note, with similar
terms and conditions as the above notes. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, outstanding
balance of the note amounted to US$50.76 million (#2,810.78 million) and USS51.08 million
(®2,848.15 million), respectively.

US$200.00 million Notcs (Duc July 2027)

On July 20,2020, VII issued USS 200.00 million notes (“Notes”) with a term of seven years
from initial drawdown datc. The Notes were used to refinance existing debt as a result of
liability management exercise and excess proceeds were used to refinance existing debt and
for general corporate purposes. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, outstanding balance of
the note amounted to US$198.62 million (R10,997.85 million) and USS198.30 million
(P11,056.18 million), respectively.

USS350.00 million Notes (Duc November 2024)

On November 28, 2017, V11 issued US$350.00 million notes (“Notes'’) with a term of

seven years from initial drawdown date. The Notes were used to refinance existing debt as a
result of liability management exercise and excess proceeds were used to refinance existing
debt and for gencral corporate purposes. As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, outstanding
balance of the note amounted to US$348.54 million (819,298.78 million) and US$346.93
million (19,343.13 million), respectively.

US$425.00 million Notes (Due June 2022
On June 18,2015, V11 issued US$300.00 million notes (*Notes") with a term of seven years

from initial draw down date. The Notes were used to refinance existing debt and for general
corporate purposes. As of December 31, 2022, the amount duc was fully paid.
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US$2,000.00 million Medium Term Note Programme

On December 29, 2023, the Parent Company's BOD approved the establishment of a
US$2,000.00 million Medinm Term Note Programme pursuant to which the Issucr (VII) may
from time to time issue US Dollar-denominated notes in such amount, with interest rate, and
under such other terms and conditions as the Management of the Parent Company and/or the
Issuer may subsequently approve or ratify. Accordingly, the Issuer is executed a Programme
Agreement with DBS Bank Ltd. And HSBC, as Dealers, for the offer, sale and issuance of
the Notes, which are guaranteed by the Parent Company and its subsidiaries namely Brittany
Corporation, Crown Asia Properties, Inc., Camella Homes, Inc., Communitics Philippines,
Inc,, Vistamalls, Inc., and Vista Residences, Inc., together with other ancillary agreements.

B. Corporate Note Facility

b.

£10,000 million Corporate Notes (Due April 2026)

On April 4, 2023, the Parent Company (the Issuer) entered into a Corporate Notes Facility
Agreement for the issuance of a long-term corporate notes consisting of Three-Year
Corporate Notes due 2026 amounting to #6,000.00 million at a fixed rate of 7.61% per
annum, payable on maturity datc.

On April 14, 2023, an additional issuance of Corporatc Notcs was made in the amount of
P4,000.00 million due 2026, at a fixed interest of 7.63% per annum, payable on maturity
date.

The proceeds of the corporate notes were used for refinancing of existing or maturing
obligations of the Parent Company, and for other general corporate purposes, The issue cost
amounted to #104.72 million. This was capitalized as debt issue cost and amortized over the
life of the liability and was offset to the carrying valuc of the liability.

As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding balance of the Corporate Notes is #9,918.49
million.

£6,000.00 million Corporate Notes (Due March 2027)

On March 28, 2022, the Parent Company (the Issucr) entered into a Corporate Notes Facility
Agreement for the issuance of a long-term corporate notes consisting of Five-Year Corporate
Notes duc 2027 amounting to £4,000.00 million at a fixed rate of 6.64% per annum, payable

in equal 17 quarters.

On June 1, 2022, an additional issuance of Corporate Notes was made in the amount of
£2,000.00 million duc 2027, at a fixed interest of 7.24% per annum, payable on maturity
date.

The proceeds of the corporate notes were uscd for refinancing of existing or maturing
abligations of the Parcnt Company, and for othcr gencral corporate purposes. The issuc cost
amounted to #51.36 million. This was capitalized as debt issue cost and amortized over the
life of the liability and was offset to the carrying valuc of the liability.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the outstanding balance of the Corporate Noles is
P4,643.22 million and #5,961.35 million, respectively.

L
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£12,000.00 million Corporate Notes (Due December 2025)

On January 31, 2023, an additional issuance of Corporate Notes was made in the amount of
£2,900,00 million due 2025, at a fixed interest of 7.26% per annum, payable on maturity
date.

On December 28, 2022, the Parent Company (the Issuer) entered into a Corporate Notes
Facility Agreement for the issuance of a long-term corporate notcs consisting of Three-Ycar
Corporate Notes duc 2025 amounting to $8,600.00 million at a fixed rate of 7.93% per
annum, payable on maturity date.

The procceds of the corporate notes were used for refinancing of existing or maturing
obligations of the Parent Company, and for other general corporate purposes. The issuc cost
amounted to P35,46 million and 851.77 million. This was capitalized as debt issue cost and
amortized over the life of the liability and was offsct to the carrying value of the liability.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the outstanding balance of the Corporate Notes is
P11,402.86 million and #8,548.23 million, respectively.

15,000.00 million Corporate Notes

On July 15, 2019, the Parent Company (the Issuer) entered into a Corporate Notes Facility
Agreement for the issuance of a long-term corporate notes consisting of Five-Year Corporate
Notes due 2024 amounting to R14,500.00 million at a fixed rate of 6.77% per annum, payable
quarterly.

On October 17, 2019, an additional issuance of Corporate Notes was made in the amount of
£500.00 million due 2024, at a fixed interest of 6.77% per annum, payable quarterly.

As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, the outstanding balance of the Corporate Notes is
P2,810.51million and P6,543.95 million, respectively.

£8,200.00 milli orale

On July 11,2018, VLLI entered into a Corporate Notes Facility Agreement for the issuance
of a long term corporate notes consisting of Seven-Year Corporate Notes due 2025
amounting to #1,700.00 million and Ten-Year Corporate Notes duc 2028 amounting to
£6,000.00 million at a fixed rate of 7.7083% per annum, payable quarterly.

On July 25, 2018, an additional issuance of Corporate Notes was made in the amount of
£500.00 million due 2025, at a fixed interest of 7.4985% per annum,

As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, the outstanding balance of the Corporate Notes is
£3,788.12 and P4,810.31 million, respectively.

£10,000.00 million Corporate Notes
On December 28, 2016, VLLI entered into a Corporate Notes Facility Agreement

for the issuance of a long-term corporate notes with a principal amount of up to

P£8,000.00 million. On April 21, 2017, 2 consent solicitation was made for amendments

to include among others, increasing the Corporate Notcs principal amount to up to
£10,000.00 million in respect to the second drawdown. Such amendments were consented by
Note Holders representing at least fifty one percent (51%) of the outstanding Corporate
Notes.
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On April 27, 2017, VLLI made such amendments to the Corporate Note Facility dated
December 28, 2016. The first drawdown was at B5,150.00 million in 2016. On May 3, 2017,
VLLI made its sccond drawdown at £4,850.00 million, payable quarterly.

As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, the outstanding balance of the Corporate Notes is
P8,572.57 million and £8,764.30 million, respectively.

C. Peso-denominated Loan

a

In December 2023, VLLI obtained a S-year unsccured peso denominated loan amounting to P
6,500.00 million which bears annual fixed intcrest of 7.54%, payable quarterly. The principal
balance of the loan will be paid in 20 equal quarterly installments commencing on the second
interest payment date subject to prepayment option. As of December 31, 2023, the
outstanding balance of the peso denominated loan is £6,465.05 million.

[n December 2023, VLLI obtained a 3-year unsecured peso denominated loan amounting to #
1,600.00 million which bears annual fixed interest of 7.10% payable quarterly. 70% of the
principal amount of the loan will be paid in equal quarterly installments commencing at the
end of the 6th month from drawdown date, and the 30% balance will be paid in full on
maturity date, As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding balance of the peso denominated
loan is #1,600.00 million.

In June 2021, VLLI obtained a 5-year unsecured peso denominated loan amounting to
£5,000.00 million which bears annual fixed interest of 4.75%, payable quarterly. The
principal balance of the loan will be paid in 20 equal quarterly installments commencing on
the second interest payment date subject to prepayment option. As of December 31,2023
and 2022, the outstanding balance amounted to £2,493.34 million and $3,487.22 million,
respectively.

In May 2021, VLLI obtained a 5-ycar unsccured peso denominated loan amounting to
£2,500.00 million which bears annual fixed interest 0f 4.75%, payable quarterly. The
principal balance of the loan will be paid in 16 equal quarterly installments commencing on
the fifth interest payment date subject to prepayment option. As of December 31, 2023 and
2022, the outstanding balance amounted to #1,556.46 million and £2,178.96 million,
respectively.

In March 2020, VLLI obtained a 5-year unsecured peso denominated loan amounting to
B5,000.00 million which bears annual fixed interest of 4.89%, payable quarterly. The
principal balance of the loan will be paid in 19 equal quarterly instaliments commencing
September 2020, As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the outstanding balance amounted to
£1,314.25 million and £2,363.20 million, respectively.

On October 24, 2019, VLLI obtained an additional 5-year unsecured peso denominated loan
from a local bank amounting to £3,000.00 million. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the
outstanding balance of the peso denominated loan is 315.79 million and £947,37 million,
respectively.

On May 6, 2019, VLLI obtained a 5-year unsecured peso denominated loan from a local bank
amounting to #2,000.00 million. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the outstanding
balance of the peso denominated loan is £200.00 million and £598.10 million, respectively.

L L]
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Retained Eamings

In accordance with Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, the Parent Company's retained
earnings available for dividend declaration as at December 31, 2023, afier reconciling items,
amounted to £5,516.82 million.

The BOD of Vistamalls, Inc. approved the declaration of regular cash dividend amounting to P258.14
million or #0.0306 per sharc, £220.43 million or #0.0262 per share, P135.99 million or #0.02 per
share and P131.45 million or P0.0156 per share on Scptember 30, 2023, September 30, 2022,
September 30, 2021 and September 30, 2020, respectively. The dividend declarations are in faver of
all stockholders of record as of October 13, 2023, October 14, 2022, October 15, 2021 and

October 15, 2020 and paid on October 27, 2023, October 27, 2022, Qctober 28, 2021 and

October 23, 2020, respectively. The remaining unpaid declared dividends are lodged under “Payable
to intermediate parent company and entities under common control”.

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Parent Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize
shareholder value, The Parent Company cstablishes the appropriate capital structure for cach
business line that properly reflects its premier credit rating and allows it the financial flexibility,
while providing it sufficient cushion to absorb cyclical industry risks.

The Parent Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of
changes in cconomic conditions. It monitors capital using leverage ratios on hoth a gross debt and
nct debt basis.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Parent Company is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement. No changes were made in the objectives, policics, or processes for managing
capital for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

The Parent Company considers its total equity as its capital.

. Financial Asset and Liabilities

The Parent Company uses the following three-level hicrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair
value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

s Levell:  Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical asscts or liabilities;
e Level2;  Valuation techniques inyolving inputs other than quoted prices included in

level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
e Level3;  Valuation techniques involving inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following methods and assumptions were used to cstimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument including investment properties:

Cash in banks and receivable from related parties: Due to the short-term nature of the account, the
fair value of the accounts approximates the carrying amounts in the statements of financial position.
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Receivable from subsidiary: The account pertains to noninterest-bearing intercompany loan to

a subsidiary with no stated date of repayment. The fair value of the account is estimated using

the discounted future loan repayments of the subsidiary using the applicable rates for similar types
of loans considering the remaining terms to maturity based on the management's best estimate

of the future cash flows. Given such considerations, the fair value of the account approximates
the carrying amount in the statements of financial position.

Investment at FVTPL: Fair values of equity securitics are based on quoted market prices as presented
in ‘Other current assets’ in the statement of financial position.

Accounts and other payables (excluding statutory payables) and pavable to related parties
(intermediate parent company, entities under common control and subsidiary): The fair values of the
accounts approximate their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position due to the short-
term nature of the transactions.

The fair valuec measurement hierarchy of the Parent Company’s assets recognized as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 pertains only to investment at FVTPL under Level 1 amounting
to £25.80 million and $#25.46 million, respectively.

There were no transfers between level categories as at December 31, 2023 and 2022,

Financial Risk Management and Objectives
Financial risk

The Parent Company's principal financial instruments are cash in banks, receivables from related
partics, accounts and other payables (excluding statutory obligations), dividends payable and
payables to related parties which arise directly from the conduct of its operations. The main risks
arising from the use of financial instruments are credit risk, equity risk, and liquidity risk.

Exposure to liquidity and credit risks arise in the normal course of the business activities, The main
objectives of the financial risk management are as follows:

s to identify and monitor such risks on an ongoing basis;
¢ to minimize and mitigate such risks; and
e to provide a degree of certainty about costs.

The BOD reviews and agrees with policies for managing each of these risks. The exposures to risk
and how they arise, as well as the objectives, policics and processes for managing the risk and the
methods used to measure the risk did not change from prior years.

The risk management policies are summarized below. The exposures to risk and how they arise, as
well as the objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk and the methods used to measure
the risk did not change from prior years.

Interest rate risk

The Parent Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates, relates primarily to its
financial asscts and liabilities that are interest-bearing. The Parent Company's financial asset that is
interest-bearing pertains only to cash in banks which amounted to P1.49 million and £2.29 million as
of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which eam interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates
ranging from 0.06% to 0.13% and to 0.10% to 0.13% in 2023 and 2022, respectively. Financial
liabilities of the Parent Company are non-interest bearing for the years 2023 and 2022,



Credit risk

The credit risks are primarily attributable to cash in banks, receivables from related partics, receivable
from subsidiary and investment at FVTPL. To manage credit risks, the Parent Company maintains
defined credit policics and monitors on a continuous basis exposure to credit risks.

Credit risk of the Parent Company arises from cash in banks. The exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the banks holding these assets. The Parent Company manages its cash by maintaining
accounts with banks which have demonstrated financial soundness for several years.

The Parent Company's receivables are concentrated to its subsidiaries, being a holding company.

Credit risk arising from reccivables from related partics is minimal as they have a low risk of default
and have a strong capacity to mect their contractual cash flows in the near term.

The Parent Company statement of financial position shows the maximum exposurc to credit risk for
the components of the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Applying the expected credit risk model did not result in the recognition of a provision for expected
credit losses for all financial asscts at amortized cost in 2023 and 2022.

Liquidity risk

The Parent Company monitors its cash flow position, debt maturity profile and overall liquidity
position in assessing its exposure to liquidity risk. The Parent Company maintains a level of cash
deemed sufficient to finance its cash requirements. Operating expenses and working capital
requirements are sufficiently funded through cash collections.

The Parent Company’s cash in banks, receivables from related parties, accounts and other payables
(excluding statutory payables) and payable to related partics arc all either due and demandable or due
within one year and approximate their undiscounted contractual payments.

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities
The table below shows the maturity profilc of parent company's financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively:

2023
On demand 1 to 3 manths 31012 montha  More thin | year Total
Finaocial Liabllities
Accuounts payable and other payables® #2,929,616 25,624 391 Lol #5,931,046 P34,485,053
Payable o relsted partics 38,912,111,058 = #= = 38,912,111,058
!38.9[2&5674 !E_i_l‘_gll | !&!3 liMﬁ ﬂmsl 11
*Excludling thadory pajabler amountieg ke PIORI2
2022
ot On demand 1to 3 mootha 3to 12 mooths  More than 1 year Tolal
Finaoclal Liabllites
Accounts payable and other payables® P3,158,567 P36,091,757 o B- P39,250,324
Payahle to related parties 38,121,649.419 = = - 38,121,£49419
P3 lilz4 ﬂp% FJ&EI.TST P | Pllllﬂﬂawi'ﬂ!

*Fuclvding skifuiory payubles asounting jo P2ASS]
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Notes to Parent Company Statement of Cash Flows

Details of the movement in cash flows from financing activities follow:

December 31, 2013

Nos-cauh
Recelvable from
Divideads ultimate parent Paysble & December 31,
y 1, 2813 Cuah Flam declared Camps rend cam 101
Payable © related parties PFILI21. 649,419 PSE2A19099 -~ - PLIEOA2240 PR IIZN1105
Divideods payshle 175118 (36534,040) 158141544 0.815368) (222,042.240) 15117
Tolal labilities from
flnancing acthvitles P38.121.924.537 PS1S.R15.359 P25R141 15 P~ PIRSL 78
T A
December 31, 2021
Non-cah Change
Receivable fom
Dividends uitimate purent Payableto December 11,
Junuary |, 2022 Cash Flows declared 2022
Payable to related parties FITRE2 06R.091 P&A M 552 P~ P= PIMTIETES  PIB121.649419
Dividends le 275,118 22492.191) 220428759 (3,009.802) (194,726, 7661 275,118
Tota! liskilitics from
ﬁm’ activities I}?&D;M P42,162,371 Pwﬂ (FJ,MEMI P PI8,121,924 537

The Parent Company's noncash operating, investing and financing activities pertain to the following;

a)

Recognition of mark-to-market lass and mark-to-market gain amounting to #0.34 million and

P1.41 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively. The investment at FVTPL is presented as part of

‘Other current asset’ in the stalement of financial position.
b)
£3.52 million and £3.01 million, respectively.
c)

Application of dividends against reccivable from ultimate parent company amounted to

Dividends declared to VLLI amounting to P228.04 million and £194.73 million in 2023 and

2022, respectively, was offsct to the receivable balance of Parent Company from VLLI, The
receivable balance of VLLI is presented net of the Parent Company's payable to VLLI

d)

Dividends declared by subsidiary, MAPI, amounting to #252.30 million and #194.68 million in

2023 and 2022, respectively, was offset to the payable balance of the Parent Company to MAPL
The payable balance to MAPI is presented net of the Parent Company's receivable from MAPL

. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statcments of the Parcnt Company for the ycar ended December 31, 2023 were

authorized for issuc by the BOD on April 15, 2024,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Dircctors and Stockholders
Vistamalls, Inc,

LGF, Building B, Evia Lifestyle Center
Vista City, Daanghari, Almanza 1

Las Piilas City

We have audited the accompanying parent company financial statcments of Vistamalls, Inc. (the Parent
Company) as at and for the year December 31, 2023, on which we have rendered the attached report
dated April 15, 2024,

In compliance with Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating that the above Parent
Company has 414 stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares each.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

&W B Valerneew
Cyril Jasmin B. Valencia

Partner

CPA Ceriificate No. 90787

Tax Identification No. 162-410-623

BOA/PRC Reg. No, 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15,2024

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-074-2023, October 23, 2023, valid until October 22, 2026
PTR No. 10082027, January 6, 2024, Makati City
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ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Dircctors and Stockholders
Vistamalls, Inc.

LGF, Building B, Evia Lifestyle Center
Vista City, Daanghari, Almanza Il

Las Pifias City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the accompanying parent
company financial statements of Vistamalls, Inc. (thc Parent Company) as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and have issued our report thereon dated April 15, 2024. Our audits were
made for the purposc of forming an opinion on the basic parent company financial statements taken as a
whole. The schedules listed in the Index to the Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the
management of the Parent Company. These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with the
Revised Sccurities Regulation Code Rule 68, and are not part of the basic parent company financial
statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the financial
information required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.
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Cyril Jas) B. Valencia

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 90787

Tax Identification No. 162-410-623

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
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April 15, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Vistamalls, Inc.

LGF, Building B, Evia Lifestyle Center
Vista City, Daanghari, Almanza II

Las Pifias City

We have audited in accordance with Philippinc Standards on Auditing, the accompanying parent
company financial statements of Vistamalls, Inc. (the Parent Company) as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2023 and have issued our report thercon dated April 15, 2024, Our audits were made for
the purposc of forming an opinion on the basic parent company financial statements taken as a

whole. The Supplementary Schedule on Financial Soundness Indicators, including their definitions,
formulas, calculation, and their appropriatencss or usefulness to the intended users, are the responsibility
of the management of the Parent Company. These financial soundness indicators are not measures of
operating performance defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies. This schedule is presented for the
purpose of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by the Sccurities and
Exchange Commission and is not a required part of the basic parent company financial statements
prepared in accordance with PFRS. The components of these financial soundness indicators have been
traced to the Parent Company’s financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2023 and
no material exceptions were noted.
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Partner
CPA Certificate No. 90787
Tax Identification No. 162-410-623
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
BIR Accreditation No, 08-001998-074-2023, October 23, 2023, valid until October 22, 2026
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VISTAMALLS, INC.

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED
EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning of reporting
period

Add: Category A: Items that are directly credited to
Unappropriated Retained Earnings
Reversal of Retaincd Eamings Appropriation/s
Effect of restatements or prior-period adjustments
Others

P5,520,749,387

Less: Category B: Items that are directly debited to
Unappropriated Retained Earnings

Dividend declaration during the reporting period

Retained Eamings appropriated during the reporting period
Effect of restatements or prior-peried adjustments

Others

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted
Add/Less: Net Income (loss) for the current year

Less: Category C.I: Unrealized income recognized in the profit
or loss during the reporting period (net of tax)
Equity in net income of associate/joint venture, net of dividends
declared
Unrealized foreign exchange gain, except those attributable to
cash and cash equivalents
Unrealized fair value adjustment (mark-to-market gains) of
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)
Unrealized fair value gain on Investment Property
Other unrcalized gains or adjustments to the rctained eamings as
a result of certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS

258,141,543
- 258,141,543
5,262,607.844
254,551,594
336,645

Sub-total

Add: Category C.2: Unrealized income recognized in the profit
or loss in prior reporting periods but realized in the current
reporting period (net of tax)
Realized foreign exchange gain, except those attributable to
Cash and cash cquivalents
Realized fair value adjustment (mark-to-market gains) of
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)
Realized fair value gain of Investment Property
Other realized gains or adjustments to the retained eamings as a
result of certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS

336,645

Sub-total
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VISTAMALLS, INC.

COMPANY STRUCTURE

Below is the map showing the relationship between and among the Group and its Parent Company,
and its subsidiarics as of December 31, 2023.

FINE |

'PROPERTIES, mc.i

65.84% Owner l
i

VISTA LAND & |
LIFESCAPES, INC.,

88.34 % Owner

VISTAMALL

| MASTERPIECE ASIA
e PROPERTIES, INC.

100% Subsidiary

| MANUELA CORPORATION
99.85% Subsidiary







